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Company Award

i RERIE

e

In 2010, Chung Tai Printing obtained the “Hong Kong Green Awards
— Green Purchaswi$e Award (Large Corporation) — Gold Award” by
the Hong Kong Green Council.

R2010%F « [BRIR(R#EE | (Green Counci) Bt HEBFBHELEK
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HONG KONG GREEN AWARDS 2010 — GREEN
PURCHASWISE AWARD (LARGE CORPORATION) -
GOLD AWARD

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited (“Chung Tai Printing”), a
subsidiary of Neway Group Holdings Limited, has always emphasized
the importance of corporate social responsibilities and making
contribution to the society. It particularly focuses on environmental
protection and increasing awareness of green issues so as to
demonstrate our corporate mission.

In 2010, Chung Tai Printing obtained the “Green Purchaswi$e Award
(Large Corporation) — Gold Award” presented by the Hong Kong
Green Council in the first year of the Hong Kong Green Awards. This
has manifested that Chung Tai Printing was socially responsible and
has set a positive model of environment protection for the public.

Being established over 30 years ago by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher,
Chung Tai Printing has a solid history. The leadership of Dr. SUEK
was characterized by his constant pursuit of an environmental-
friendly future. Our current Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, also
emphasizes the importance of promoting and supporting greenness
to Chung Tai Printing.

e

Mr. Ernie Suek, Chairman of Neway Group (right) received the “Hong
Kong Green Awards — Green Purchaswi$e Award (Large Corporation)
— Gold Award”.
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Company Award

R ERIE

One of Chung Tai Printing’s business accomplishments is the
implementation of an environmental protection program which
illustrates our corporate value. Adhering to its “total environmental
protection” strategies, Chung Tai Printing spares no effort to save
energy, conserve the environment, slash water wastage and reduce its
carbon footprint, which was shown by the fact that the raw materials
purchased based on its green principles currently accounts for over
90% of its total purchases.

The entire stuff of Chung Tai Printing is united in the promotion of
environmental protection and greenness within the group. Staff of all
levels are given this clear direction.

The “Hong Kong Green Awards 2010 — Green Purchaswi$e Award
(Large Corporation) — Gold Award” certainly helps Chung Tai Printing
in building up its corporate image and brand name in the way that
we are taking advantage of this opportunity to convey the following
positive message to our employees and the public: “Chung Tai
Printing supports environmental protection, you also can do it!”

Being environmental-friendly is both our mission and vision. Chung Tai
Printing will continue to support greenness with all its efforts.
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(from left) Mr. Ernie Suek, Chairman of Neway Group, Ms. Linda
Ho, Chief Executive Officer of Green Council, Ms. Ng Wai Chi, Vice
President of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, Dr. Ng
Wai Yung, Angela, President of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company
Limited.
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Green Council promotes environmental protection among
the industrial and commercial sectors in their production and
management processes.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRE

I am pleased to present the
2010/2011 annual results of
Neway Group Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) to all investors and
would like to announce that the
Group recorded a profit for the

period under review.

ﬂKkﬁﬁﬁﬁTﬁﬁ%E%EFE% SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie & = B8
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group recorded a HEr - ZET——F=A=1+—HIBEE
profit. During the period, the Group's turnover was approximately B AREFEEESEERFOEH - RERA -
HK$678.2 million and net profit attributable to the shareholders was RER B L L A678,200,0008
approximately HK$46.9 million. The Group continued to carried on its T+ 2 P IR R FE A 48 M1 49 /46,900,000
effective cost control and implemented “total quality management”. B TT o ANEE BRI IR A - LAE
The Group's gross profit reached approximately HK$136.9 million. EEREM S EIEKE  MAEEKY

= ) 713 51 49136,900,00078 T ©

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 &£ WZRER 2 7
Annual Report 2011



Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2011 of HKO0.10 cent per share (2010:
HKO0.08 cent), subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Hong Kong's economy continued to improve steadily in 2010. The
GDP growth in Mainland China and Hong Kong also supported the
economic recovery. The demand for printing products from external
buyers maintained stable growth, which was mainly stimulated by the
constant momentum of the global economic recovery.

During the period under review, the Group’s printing business
recorded a satisfactory profit by successfully controlling its costs.
Although the profit margin of the printing business has decreased due
to the impact of persistently rising inflation and labor cost, the Group
has upheld “Green Production” as our direction in the future. We
will continue to increase our investment in “Green Production” and
promote the development of green products.
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6 Annual Report 2011

ExeEaz ¥z _T——F=AH
=+t HUEVBREEZRPEREAZR
0108 (ZF—ZFF :0.0881l) 1
ARARNRIREREERRAFTFAE
HEfE

R2010F  BELBEREFERETH
SHNE PREEAEZBEANEERLE
(GDPE R IFiF 548 BB 8 MIMEE
RYUERIERBRK EFA T ETHIRK
KRS E IR FEIE RS-

OB RN 45 - RS BRI B AR
I%T BNl 52 75 8% 15 38 *E'ﬂﬂiiﬁ

A RBBERERS TRARE

/éﬁlﬁwa Aﬁ’*lﬂ%ﬂfﬂ%?‘%ﬂ
REMTE: NB AEBERE [e4
BRI A A& # AR DA AR
BAEENRA #EBRANRREMDNE
& o



Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

To tackle the impacts of rising costs, the management will continue
to increase production efficiency, improve product quality, focus on
employees’ training and develop products with higher added values.
Every year, the Group regularly invited professionals to train our
employees. In addition, we are also constantly importing new printing
machines and expanding the production lines with a view to achieving
“total quality management”. Another important achievement is the
adjustment of the customer base of the printing business in order to
realize diversification, which included expanding Mainland China’s
domestic market, efforts in expanding our share in the green product
market, developing new products and seeking potential customers
from new overseas markets such as Russia, Middle East and South
America.

As to the entertainment business, the Group recorded a stable
growth in the financial year. For example, we hosted more concerts
and shows such as “Neway Music Live 2010 — Hot Stars Party”
and “2011 — Chi Lam in Concert”. Return from the entertainment
business gradually improved. In particular, the artiste management
segment recorded extraordinary results. During the period, the Group
successfully promoted the brand and reputation of our artistes and
the entertainment business in general.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

We successfully added a new member, i.e. Stephanie, Cheng Yung,
a popular and famous artiste/singer, to Star Entertainment (Universe)
Limited (“SEU") in December 2010. In addition, we signed a
cooperation agreement with a Taiwan entertainment company that
covers Michael Wong, one of their artistes. These newcomers will
certainly benefit the Group. In August 2010, SEU also entered into a
Sales and Distribution Agreement with JV Entertainment Productions
Ltd. Pursuant to the Agreement, SEU is appointed as the worldwide
sole and exclusive distributor. It owns various brands such as Crown
Record and JVE. The collaboration created new competitive edges for
both parties and achieved a “win-win” combination.

The Group will continue to focus on opportunities in Mainland
China so as to add value to our entertainment business. “The Great
Rescue”, a TV series in Mainland China jointly invested by the Group
and shot in collaboration with CCTV, has already been broadcasted
and was highly praised. The relevant income will be reflected in the
results for the year 2011/2012. The second TV series produced with
CCTV, namely “Shot Hole”, has also been broadcasted in June 2011.
We believe our business relationship with CCTV will bring synergy and
benefits to both parties.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to develop the
entertainment business and diversify into new areas. We will
introduce new elements with high values, achieve synergy and provide
stimulus to the entertainment business.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our
employees for their contributions to the Group. | would also like to
express my deepest gratitude to our shareholders and investors for
their support. We will continue to create value and make contribution
to the Group as our vision is “to be the most valued and innovative
leader in the selected fields we serve”, which has also been our motto
that encourages all of us.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

2010-2011 was a year of change to the Group. The Group has
devoted enormous effort to explore new opportunities and raise
the corporate image of the printing business and the music and
entertainment businesses, which have resulted in positive impacts
on the Group. For the printing business, the Group has put more
resources in “Green Purchasing” in order to support environmental
protection and further strengthen the sales team so as to diversify our
customer base into the markets of different product categories and at
different locations. For the music and entertainment businesses, the
Group has explored more income streams, such as shows, concerts
and working in partnership with other entertainment groups outside
Hong Kong. On the other hand, the Group is actively searching
for potential projects in and outside Hong Kong with a view to
diversifying the Group’s businesses into different aspects.

Printing business

The Group has put tremendous effort into the search for business
opportunities in local, overseas and Chinese markets in the
2010/2011 financial year by further strengthening the sales team
and improving the relationship with our loyal customers. More
resources have been allocated to our expansion in the Chinese
market, including the setting up of a strong sales team with an aim
to enlarging our existing customer base in the PRC. Revenue from the
printing segment increased by 19% as compared with last year. At the
same time, our smart control measures over material costs as well as
production and running expenses have achieved the desirable effect
that are reflected in our stable profit margin of the printing business
notwithstanding the inflationary environment in both Hong Kong and
China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

Music and entertainment businesses

The Group has restructured the entertainment division and introduced
different new elements into the division, such as music concerts
and shows. Besides, we have contracted as a worldwide sole and
exclusive distributor of a well-known brand of audio and visual
products. Meanwhile, the Group has expanded its artiste base by co-
operating with Taiwanese entertainment groups. During the vyear,
we had 12 contracted artistes and 1 contracted pop group. Income
contribution from the entertainment division was insignificant to the
Group as most of the new elements were introduced by the Group
in late 2010/2011 financial year. As the invested TV program has
been broadcasted after the end of the current financial year, relevant
income will be recognized in the coming financial year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 March 2011, total revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$678.2 million (2010: HK$569.0 million) with gross
profit margin slightly decreased to 20% (2010: 22%).

Neway Group Holdings Limited F E&BZERER D A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

Printing business

Revenue from the printing business recorded a 19% year-on-year
increase to approximately HK$656.5 million (2010: HK$549.9 million)
during the year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
orders due to the recovery of the global economy. However, the gross
profit margin decreased slightly by 2 percentage points from 22%
to 20%. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
increase in material costs and labor costs, which were caused by the
increase in minimum wages set by the Chinese government.

Music and entertainment businesses

Revenue from the music and entertainment businesses increased by
14% to HK$21.8 million as compared with last year. Revenue mainly
consisted of the promotion revenue from certain promotional activities
in connection with the karaoke operations, income from concerts and
shows, artiste management income, album distribution income and
song licensing income. The net profit margin has slightly increased by
2.7 percentage points from 4.6% to 7.3%.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income amounted to approximately HK$6.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2011, 73% higher than that in last year (2010:
HK$3.7 million). The increase arose because the Group has actively
placed its cash in those banks in Hong Kong and China with higher
interest rates for saving and time deposit accounts in order to earn a
higher interest income.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs amounted to approximately HK$29.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2011, 12% higher than that
of last year (2010: HK$26.8 million), which was consistent with the
increase in our consolidated revenue. The selling and distribution
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased to 4.4% (2010:
4.7%). The decrease was mainly attributable to the cost control
measures which were strengthened during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 11% to
approximately HK$77.3 million (2010: HK$69.8 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2011. Such increase was mainly due to the increase
in staff costs and consultancy fees paid to third parties for searching
potential projects and providing training courses to our senior
management. Besides, the environmental-related cost increased after
the adoption of the Green Purchasing strategy by the Group.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses comprised the following major items:

1TBBA X

HE _ZT—F=ZA=+—HItFE"

1T B L h1 4911 % %= #977,300,0005%
7T (ZZ—F 5 :69,800,000/8 7T ) ° 1
MEZEBREIRARAYEBEER
MaAEBSRERBIRMAEIRIZM
M =H T 2 B BIE hFTE - toh

IRIRAEBAR A TN AN BIERINVAR @K EE
REE 1R -

HtsmRER
Hf s RSBeEN TEEER

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Net foreign exchange gains ANGEE W 2 F BB 11,704 28,925

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZREE (289) (380)

Reversal of allowance for bad and RIBRBHERED

doubtful debts 3,717 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME HERE&EEZ

equipment &5 18 (57) -

Gain on disposal of film rights HE R R 2 e 3,647 -

Total HaEt 18,722 28,545

During the year, as the exchange rate of Australian dollars (“AUD")
remained strong against Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), the Group
considered it was a good timing to convert all AUD deposits into
HKD and recorded a realized foreign exchange gain of approximately
HK$11.7 million (2010: an unrealized foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$28.9 million).

Besides, the Group has disposed of its film rights to a third party and
a gain of HK$3.6 million was recorded. For the reversal of allowance
for bad and doubtful debt, the Group has further tightened its
credit management of account receivables and HK$3.7 million was
recovered during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

FINANCE COSTS

No significant finance cost was incurred during the year.

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group recorded net
profit for the year of approximately HK$46.9 million (2010: HK$60.2
million) while the net profit margin decreased by 3.7 percentage
points to 6.9% (2010: 10.6%).

The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in realized foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$11.7 million
from the AUD fixed deposit in this financial year as compared with an
unrealized foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$28.9 million
from the same deposits in the previous financial year which was due
to the slowed down AUD appreciation against HKD as compared with
last financial year.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the summary of the Group’s current ratio,
quick ratio and gearing ratio as at 31 March 2011 and 2010:

|
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€ AN 5 B 8115 2K F 435 K 4946,900,000
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Notes 2011 2010
K&t —E——fF —E-2F
Current ratio MENLL & (i) 6.6 8.1
Quick ratio RB) LK (i) 5.6 6.9
Gearing ratio (%) BEEBELE%) (iii) 1.0 0.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Notes:

(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by
the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the total current assets, net of
inventories, divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the
year.

(iii) Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total bank borrowings divided
by the total equity and multiplied by 100%.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$325.3 million (31
March 2010: HK$379.4 million) and short term bank borrowings of
approximately HK$8.6 million (31 March 2010: HK$7.1 million). The
Group has maintained a strong and healthy liquidity and gearing ratio
over the years.

During the year, the Group has allocated more working capital and
financial resources to the expansion of the printing business. New
staff quarters and a warehouse were built during the financial year to
divert the excess demand on the existing premises. Furthermore, more
staffs were employed to cope with the business expansion and salaries
payable has increased accordingly. Therefore, the current and quick
ratios decreased to 6.6 and 5.6 respectively as at 31 March 2011.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group continues to maintain a high level of operating cash
position, reflecting the strength of its operating performance. Having
considered the anticipated internally generated funds and available
bank facilities, the Group has adequate resources to meet its future
capital expenditures and working capital requirements. The Group
will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing its cash balances
and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group
is well positioned to take advantage of the opportunities of business
growth.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Leveraging on the strong foothold of its printing business with
sustainable and stable income and cash flow, looking ahead, the
Group will dedicate its efforts to the development of its music and
entertainment businesses and other high potential projects in the PRC.
The Group will unwaveringly maintain this two-prong growth strategy
with a view to providing steady returns as well as fruitful growth for
the shareholders.

Printing business

Cautious geographical strategy and customer diversification will be
the major strategies carried out by the Group in the coming year. The
Group will carefully adjust its resources pooled to overseas markets
and, at the same time, devote our attention to the Chinese market.
With rising demand in China, coupled with the supportive policies
implemented by the PRC government, the Group is confident of
winning more customers in China and expanding the customer base
of the Group.

Music and entertainment businesses

The Group will continue to input more new elements to the music
and entertainment businesses so as to solidify its industry platform
and market presence. The Group will continue to cooperate with
different entertainment groups in order to enter and develop the
overseas markets and further expand the existing markets and
businesses. The Group will consider continuing to work with TV
stations in the PRC to produce TV series broadcasted in Mainland
China. The first TV series invested by the Group has been launched
on CCTV after the end of the financial year. The second TV series
is expected to be launched in the coming financial year. The Group
is optimistic yet patient about broadening its profit base with this
promising growth engine.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases were principally denominated in
Renminbi, HKD and US dollars. Except for the Renminbi, there is no
significant fluctuation in the exchange rate between HKD and US
dollars throughout the year. The management will closely monitor
the foreign exchange risk for Renminbi and identify any significant
adverse impact of it to the PRC operations. The Group will consider
using appropriate hedging solutions, if required. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2011, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purpose and did not have any hedging
instruments outstanding as at 31 March 2011.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, having considered the strong
strengthening of AUD against HKD, the Group has fully converted all
AUD deposits into HKD. Therefore, the foreign exchange risk on AUD
deposit will no longer exist in the coming year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the capital expenditure of the
Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$64.3 million (2010: HK$7.4 million). The significant increase arose
from the leasehold improvement of approximately HK$13.6 million
incurred for the newly rented factory for the expansion of domestic
sales in the current year. Besides, the construction cost of new staff
quarters and the warehouse of approximately HK$37.3 million was
incurred in the current year for the expansion of the printing business
and diverting the excess demand on the existing premises. The
remaining HK$13.4 million was mainly incurred for maintaining the
production capacity of the machineries to meet the current market
demand.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had made capital commitment of
approximately HK$25.3 million (31 March 2010: HK$2.5 million) for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and approximately
HK$11.4 million (31 March 2010: HK$13.1 million) for the acquisition
of land use rights in the PRC, which had been contracted for but not
been provided in the financial statements. The Group did not make
any capital commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment which had been authorized but had not been contracted
for in both years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2011 (31 March 2010: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has pledged a leasehold building
with a carrying value of HK$31 million to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (31 March 2010: HK$32 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had approximately 3,200 full time
employees (31 March 2010: approximately 3,000). Total staff costs
including directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March
2011 was approximately HK$135.7 million (2010: approximately
HK$118.0 million). The remuneration schemes are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees. The reward packages of the Group’s staff are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on the staff and the Group’s
performance. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits include
contributions to Retirement Benefit Scheme and medical insurance
for eligible employees. In-house and external training programs are
provided as and when required.

BRI

R-E——F=A=+—H KX£EEH
BRI NERETBREBEE ZY
¥ BEMEKERERFBELHEH
%Lléz BB & AN R HE 4925,300,000%8

N #711,400,0008 T (ZFE—FF =
H4,+f H: % 5l A&2,500,000/% 7T &
13,100,000/ 7T ) » ANEB P MEFE A
WEREREERITOZUE BE X
SR AR U BB VR T ] B AR R o

_E 7N /\15

BEMNERKRAB(=ZF— Ei
=t—R:E)-

EERH

RZEBE——F=ZA=+—H K&EEE
K ¥ — I8 BR E (& 431,000,000/ 7T 2
EEF UEAASEER —RIRITRY
EvEB(ZE—ZF=ZA=+—8:
32,000,000/ 7T) °

ABDER
R-_E——F=ZA=+—H AEEH
BH32008 2 REE (ZE—FF=H
—1+—H:493,000%) - BETHKA (&
BEZE-_T——F=ZA=+—BIL&FEE
ZEEME)# A135,700,0005% 7T ( —
T — T :49118,000,000/ 7T ) © & B
FBE—BRTTAKEEERETE A
SEET HEBREESFHRBETRR
MAEBEEEITIRT - BREBIN Efb
ﬁlhﬂa%LWmﬂﬁﬂZﬁ A=
BEREERBEZEERR - ANEEI
BEBRERIRINREENETE

Neway Group Holdings Limited # 25 B HR A T
Annual Report 2011 #3817
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group's annual report for the year ended
31 March 2011.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to Company business, and
ensuring transparency and accountability of Company operations. The
Board recognises that good corporate governance practices are vital
to maintain and promote shareholder value and investor confidence
and has adopted various measures to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance is maintained and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices ("CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(“Listing Rules”) that are considered to be relevant to the Group and
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business. The Company
is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices and
to reviewing its corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure that they align with the latest development.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for certain
deviations from the code provisions which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this Report.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders. Every
director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of
two executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee and
Remuneration committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of Remuneration committee and
member of Audit committee)

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of Audit committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Chief Executive Officer, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Chairman. The detailed relationships among members
of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Executives” on pages 29 to 32.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the operations
of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running
the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing the
Group's strategic plans and business goals. The Board considers that
the respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are
not necessary.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are uncle and
nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Although the directors are not appointed for a specific term, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years and any new director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment pursuant to the
Company's Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company's Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development to directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Board Committee Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board met 4 times, two
of which were regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance of the Group. The Company
did not announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the
holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EE® (#)
Board and Board Committee Meetings (Continued) EEEREESZEESEE (8)
Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) EEHELDL (&)
The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of UWTHEASEENEHE T —F=
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the A=+t—HIEFERN 2HEFEE FZ
year ended 31 March 2011 is set out below: ZEeNTMEEee: 2 HELE:
Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship
EETACHERE SBRH
Audit Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
EEnA EExg EREEY FMZEEE
Executive Directors HITES
— Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie —ERBEE 4/4 N/A N/A
(Chairman) (/) A T A
— Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —EBEXE 4/4 N/A N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB#Ea%) iR i B
~ Mr. LAU Chin Hung —2EBEE(RZT—ZF 172 N/A N/A
(retired on 18 August 2010) NATNBEMS) NEA NEA
— Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick —HEELE(RZZE—FF 12 N/A N/A
(resigned on 25 November 2010) +—AZTAHET) TE A TEA
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
— Dr. NG Wai Kwan —REMETL 4/4 N/A N/A
5 A i A
— Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —[RmM k& 4/4 N/A N/A
N5 A i A
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee —EHEEE (ELZESE 4/4 212 11
and Remuneration committee) REFEWZEESHKE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
— Mr. TSE Tin Tai —HARFERE 3/4 N/A N/A
5 A i A
— Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of —BEEEE 4/4 212 1/1
Remuneration committee and member (FWZEE2+E
of Audit committee) REGZESHE)
— Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of -BESat 4/4 212 1/1
Audit committee and member of (BERZEZTRE
Remuneration committee) REWZEELHE)
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company, they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION

The Company has not formalized and adopted written terms on
the division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management. In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision
making in all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and
overall strategies, internal controls and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior executives.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by these senior executives and the Board has
the full support of them to discharge their responsibilities.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference which are posted
on the Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Messrs. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman), LUI Lai Ping, Cecily and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of the executive directors and have
access to professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2011.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company put to the
Board for approval.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company assets.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group. The
senior management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors,
Messrs. LUl Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman), CHENG Chi Wai and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors
(including one independent non-executive director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met twice and
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2010 and interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2010. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
the management the Group’s accounting policies and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Group and reported to the Board on material issues, if any, and
made recommendations to the Board. It has also reviewed the work
performed and fees charged by the external auditors and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2011
has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 44 to 45.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the remuneration paid to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$1,350,000 and HK$150,000
respectively.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend Annual General
Meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and for shareholders
to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, normally attend the annual general meeting
and other relevant shareholders’ meetings to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after the
shareholders’ meeting. The detailed procedures for conducting a poll
vote are always explained at the commencement of the meetings.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERBRITHAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 32, was appointed as chairman of
the Company since August 2009. He has been an executive director
of the Company since July 2004 and chief executive officer since
November 2007 until 31 August 2009. Mr. SUEK obtained an EMBA
degree and a master degree in marketing from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He has 2 years of
experience in investment banking and subsequently moved on to
commercial sector and has been a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK possesses of sophisticated and professional
management experience and familiar with investment analysis. He
is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business development and
with ambition to search for business opportunities in China market.

Mr. SUEK has passion to involve charity association and take the
social responsibilities to deliver his kindness. He is the member of the
committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in country town of Qing Xin, Qingyuan of Guangdong province. He,
as the committee member of Hong Kong Arts Development Council,
Vice President of Federation of Hong Kong Guangxi Community
Organization, Vice President of Hong Kong Guangxi Chamber of
Commerce, Executive Member and Vice Executive Secretary of
Guangxi Overseas Friendship Association, Executive Director of Hong
Kong United Youth Association, and, Director of Po Leung Kuk (2010-
2011).

Mr. SUEK is son of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive and
controlling shareholder of the Company, nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai
Hong, executive director and chief executive officer of the Company,
and Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 49, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company since August 2009, he has been
the Company’s executive director since 1992. Mr. SUEK obtained
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Finance from York
University, Canada, he has more than 20 years of experience in
marketing and is responsible for running the Company’s businesses
and developing and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and
business goals.

Mr. SUEK is uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the executive director
and chairman of the Company, brother-in-law of Dr. NG Wai Yung,
Angela, senior executive of the Company; both of whom are also
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERBRITHRABZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 61, was appointed as the Company’s
non-executive director in March 2007. Dr. NG holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in U.K. Dr. NG
has over 20 years’ experience in procurement, logistic planning and
leadership development.

Dr. NG is uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and
chairman of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. CHAN
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 28 years of experience in finance and
management in several multinational corporations.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 55, is a non-executive director of the
Company, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since December 1994 until August 2009. Mr.
WONG was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
in August 2009. He is now a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
over 20 years’ experience in telecommunication products business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERBRITHRABZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from York University, Canada and has
over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing field in information
technology related companies.

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai, aged 46, holds an EMBA degree and a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. CHENG has
more than 20 years’ experience in auditing, financial control and
corporate finance. Mr. CHENG previously worked in an international
accounting firm and held key finance positions in several companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily, aged 45, holds a master degree of science
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration.
She is also an affiliate member of the Association of International
Accountant. Ms. LUl has more than 15 years’ experience in financial
management, financial accounting, human resources management
and company secretarial field. She is at present manager of Pioneer
Industrial Components (Hong Kong) Limited, overseeing the
company'’s financial and human resources management and company
secretarial affairs.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERBRITHRABZEE

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 48, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, in July
2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited and the human
resources manager of Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited.
Mr. LAU joined the Group in 2001. He holds a master degree
in Business Administration and a master degree in Professional
Accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing in United Kingdom and has
over 17 years of experience in management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, Dr. NG has over 30 years' experience in
label and screen process printing business. She holds a master degree
in Business Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a
Honorary doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from
Burkes University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom. Dr. NG is
the President of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung Tai
Printing (China) Company Limited and also a senior executive of the
Company and she is responsible for the daily management of the
printing business.

Ms. NG Wai Chi, Ms. Ng has over 30 years of experience in label
and silkscreen printing. She is the Vice President of Chung Tai Printing
Company Limited and Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
and she is responsible for the corporate social responsibility and
quality management of the Group.

Mr. WONG Kin Ho, Kevin, Mr. WONG obtained his bachelor's
degree in Social Science, majoring in Journalism & Mass
Communications from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1991.
He then started his career in music entertainment industry and had
been working in various major records companies including Golden
Pony, EMI, Universal Music and Avex Asia to responsible for product
promotion and marketing. Mr. WONG has been in the industry for
20 years and has participated in managing and promoting many local
and foreign artistes and celebrities, in 2007 he was appointed the
Senior Marketing Director of Avex Asia Limited. Mr. WONG joined Star
Entertainment (Universe) Limited as from 2009 and was appointed
in 2010 as Chief Executive Officer of both Neway Star Limited and
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited, overseeing the Group’s music
productions, artiste management and show business.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas is director of our various
companies of music and entertainment division, he was human
resources manager of Neway Karaoke Box for the period from 2001
to 2007 before being appointed as an executive director. Mr. WAN
has over 10 years' experience in the related fields of management
and holds a bachelor’s degree in human resources management from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a master’s of science degree of
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries and associate are set
out in notes 37 and 18 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
46.

An interim dividend of HKO0.03 cent per share amounting to
HK$3,058,063 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.10 cent per share for the financial year ended 31 March 2011
(2010: HKO.08 cent), subject to the approval by the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the year
at an aggregate cost of approximately HK$64.3 million in order to
increase its production capacity. Details of this and other movements
during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2011, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$542 million.
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Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 124.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong
Mr. LAU Chin Hung

(Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer)
(retired on 18 August 2010)

Mr. CHENG Chee Juen,
Patrick

(resigned on 25 November 2010)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan (alternate director:

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,

Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai
Mr. CHENG Chi Wai
Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs
SUEK Chai Hong, NG Wai Kwan, and TSE Tin Tai will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company.
Retiring directors being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 87(2).
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2011, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

(i) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each

EEZRBSLN

ERRLERERRBFASLEREY
Ex MERAKETT I ERTAR—
FRKIEMBRAELHE OLERBER
SN 2 BRIE B4

ESEzROREBRRN EDR

RZE——F=A=+—H BEEKK
E2HMBATIRARRRERE EZE 2
D RABRERE (D - HER AR RIIRIEE
ENHEGRAEISNEFE 2 B M
B RIBE EMBITAZERETES
R ZIZESFRBHNEG AR E RE B
ARG AR AR ZERMT:

() ZARFERE(EO0.005ETEE

of the Company B2HE
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company
Name of director Capacity shares held HARRATE BT
EENA g1 BEZBEREE BAEABDL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Other interests 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
EEsElh LA HgEzs
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 800,000 0.01%
REHEL Em#EAA
Note: Bt
1. These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited 1. ZEWRMHTHPACNA Company

("CNA") which in turn is beneficially owned by the CNA Trust,
a discretionary trust whose beneficiaries include Mr. SUEK Ka

Lun Ernie.

Limited ([CNA ) B&= %A Mm%
ARIAIACNAERE (—EZEAR
FEEBTEZ2RET) Bl
ﬁo
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ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii)

Long positions of shares in associated corporations

At 31 March 2011, CNA beneficially owned deferred non-
voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the Company:

Name of subsidiary

Name of owner

ESZROREBRRN EDR

(%)

(i) MBEERO2HFR

R-ZZE——F=A=+—H CNA

EREAARA NIHNBEARZ
EREERER:

Number and par value of
deferred non-voting shares

MEARER BEAE® EREREER B REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PAREBERAA 2 BREENET
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each
RRENR] (B BR AR 100R% - B IR E{E100/8 7T
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA 3,000 shares of HK$100 each
R ENRI A IR 2 A 3,0008% " FAXE 1008 7T
Profit Link Investment Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PRIEEEEBR AR 20 BRREETVE T
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited CNA 9,500 shares of HK$100 each

MR X ENRI B R A

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2011.

36
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Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than the directors of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance were as follows:

Long Positions

FERRK
NZE——F=A=1+—H FERE
RARRIRRBE S M E KD F33615
GFEZEXERRAMA AT iR E
BEHERHEEFIEXVERFE2 3D AR
MARRREBBHAER AR AR Z
AR MAABR G ERSOAR (K
RAIZEFHRINGAT .

"R

Percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of  of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held HAEQT ST

KRR &R 14 FrERG#E RAET DL

CNA Beneficial owner 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
EmEEA

KF Suisse SA Trustee 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
ZiEA

David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
REHDEE 2 #E

Rebecca Ann Hill Interest of spouse 3,713,200,000% 7 36.43%
fic B 4 =

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher Founder of trust 3,987,200,0007 39.11%

EEE A L BEEERISZA

Dr. NG Wai Yung By attribution 3,987,200,000° 39.11%

REFET FE1E 2

Notes: Bat -

1. CNA is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust. 1. CNAR — BT TSNS -

2. Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares duplicate with those held 2. REZERE 5+ 3,713,200,00008 48 B CNA

by CNA. BB 2R —#4R -
3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill. 3. David Henry Christopher HillZ B2 (8 o
4, Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares are beneficially owned by 4. RS R 5 H - 3,713,200,0008% B CNA

CNA which in turn is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who is also one of the beneficiaries;
274,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher.

5. Spouse of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder.

i}

TSR MCNAR —HEE BB kL
WAHAESRTZAZ —22REAERER:
274,000,000/ HEE B IE T B SR -

\

5. TERREEGE L ZRE-
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ESEHRE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Directors including the non-executive directors
have considered the following continuing connected transactions:

Exempt continuing connected transactions
1. Sharing of office

Neway Entertainment Group entered into a licence agreement
with Neway Karaoke Box pursuant to which Neway Karaoke
Box agreed to grant a license to Neway Entertainment
Group to occupy and use certain areas at 15th Floor, Park-In
Commercial Centre, 56 Dundas Street, Mongkok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong ("Office”) at a license fee of HK$30,000 per
month for a term commencing 16 June 2009 and ending on
31 March 2012.

Neway Entertainment Group is currently occupying the Office
as its head office. The license fee was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties having regard to the
prevailing market rates of similar commercial properties in the
same vicinity.
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ESEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Exempt continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Sharing of office (Continued)

Neway Karaoke Box is a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Provision of staff quarter

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, a directly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into a tenancy
agreement with Neway Power Limited in renting a residential
premises at Double Haven, 52 Ma Lok Path, Shatin, New
Territories as staff quarter at a monthly rental of HK$70,000
commencing 1 December 2009 for a two years term. Neway
Power Limited is a company, of which Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
is one of the beneficial owners.

Sale of Goods

During the year, Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
sold certain goods to a related company of which Dr. SUEK
Chai Kit, Christopher is one of the ultimate beneficial owners.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Since each of the respective
transactions is less than HK$1,000,000, they are exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content

Neway Entertainment Group provides the promotion services to, and
distributing licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by, Neway Karaoke Box Group. Such
transactions constitute continuing connected transaction for the
Company. A Master Agreement has been concluded with Neway
Karaoke Box to regulate the provision of the promotion services and
the distribution of licensed content.

HEBERS (&)

ERAFEBRERS (&)
1. REABAZE (&)

Neway Karaoke BoxA&— B AR
AIFrZRREFEBFELIHEAEEZE
RS/

2. BEHRETEZ

KRR BEREZENBARIFR X
ENfm| (R EY) A BR A & EENeway
Power Limiteds] SZ HH & 7% - 1
R R R0 B 21585257 i BA
W2 EEMEREELIEE A
70,0008 B _EThF+=
H— B AR - Neway Power
Limited®s — A REZB T EER
Eh—RERBBEAZARC

3. #HEEM@
FRPRENR (R E) AR A
A-—REERAREEETER"
MEBEREL RABERR &
REDHEBAZ

X SERARB ZHERE
RS -HARBERGHEREELRA
1,000,000/ JT * UL R & = R
BIE14AEER BB TRHR N F
MBS IRERAAEZFRTE -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Parties

(A) Neway Entertainment (for itself and on behalf of other
members of Neway Entertainment Group); and

(B) Neway Karaoke Box (for itself and on behalf of other members
of Neway Karaoke Box Group). Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly
wholly-owned by a discretionary trust for the benefits of
members of SUEK Family, and therefore, a connected person
of the Company.

Term

Commencing on 16 June 2009 and ending on 31 March 2012.

Promotion services

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group to
provide promotion services (which may include interviews by media,
TV commercials, photo shooting, performance at public functions) to
be performed by the artistes managed from time to time by Neway
Entertainment Group on terms to be mutually agreed on a case by
case basis, such terms not being more favourable as those provided by
Neway Entertainment Group to independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a service fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on commercial negotiation making reference to the type of promotion
services to be provided, the working hours, skills and popularity
required of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment
of the service fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note
issued by Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Distribution of licensed content

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group
to distribute licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by Neway Karaoke Box Group on terms
to be mutually agreed on a case by case basis, such terms not being
more favourable as those provided by Neway Entertainment Group to
independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a license fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on the number of karaoke music videos and the popularity required
of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment of the
licence fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note issued by
Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

During the year, the service fee for provision of promotion services
and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed content charged
by Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group are
HK$5,109,334 and HK$1,091,800 respectively totally HK$6,201,134.

The annual caps of the service fee payable by Neway Karaoke Box
Group for the provision of the promotion services and the licensed fee
for distribution of licensed content are set out as follows:

For the period from 26 June 2009 to
31 March 2010 HK$14,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HK$17,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HK$17,000,000

The cap amounts are determined by reference to, among other things,
historical figures of the services fees and licensed fee charged by
Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group and the
projected development and promotion plan of Neway Entertainment
Group and Neway Karaoke Box Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

An announcement (the “Announcement”) was published on 16 June
2009 regarding this non-exempt continuing connected transaction in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported its factual
findings to the Board of Directors that the continuing connected
transactions (i) have received the approval of the Board of the
Company; (ii) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company; (iii) have been entered in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing the transaction; and (iv) have
not exceeded the cap amount for the year ended 31 March 2011 as
set out in the Announcement.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company applied
the principles of and complied with all the code provisions of, the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for certain deviations. Details of
the corporate governance practices are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 18 to 28.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2011.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest supplier accounted for 13% of total purchases
while the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 21% of total
purchases during the year.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of total turnover.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during
the year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AN RS

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AN RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 June 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZTEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

>~ L S

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-ZTF
NOTES HK$ HK$
bt BT BT
Revenue & 6 678,246,186 569,015,711
Cost of sales $HE AR (541,383,041) (441,272,973)
Gross profit EH 136,863,145 127,742,738
Interest income FEWA 6,381,458 3,678,444
Other income E U A 969,978 898,043
Selling and distribution expenses HE RKIHAX (29,945,830) (26,782,080)
Administrative expenses B (77,257,957) (69,829,249)
Other gains and losses H e g8 7 18,722,071 28,545,031
Finance costs A& A AR 8 (150,862) (294,741)
Share of loss of an associate JE{h — KBt & N R EE (1,029,848) (791,791)
Profit before taxation BR B A& 54,552,155 63,166,395
Taxation 18 17 (7,667,244) (2,953,390)
Profit for the year IR g 12 46,884,911 60,213,005
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E WA
Exchange differences arising BREBINEBEE
on translation of foreign operations ZIE W =R 6,498,780 2,155,913
Total comprehensive income REZHEINABEE
for the year 53,383,691 62,368,918
Earnings per share AT
Basic and diluted AR #E 14 0.46 HK cents &1l 0.59 HK cents 1Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra B AR R R
At 31 March 2011
R-CE——F=H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
NOTES HK$ HK$
bt BT BT
Non-current assets EMBNE E
Property, plant and equipment W REREE 15 225,671,259 188,033,945
Prepaid lease payments FENHAERE 6 2,985,685 3,074,295
Deposits for land use rights THERERT & 17 40,994,417 39,352,217
Investment in an associate R—KEERA 2
®E 18 15,903,075 16,932,923
Goodwill & 19 36,025,324 36,025,324
Intangible assets EEE 20 10,488,272 12,786,334
Deposits for investments wET® 17 9,024,152 -
Deposits for acquisition of property, W BE Rk
plant and equipment B=pA 3,148,434 -
344,240,618 296,205,038
Current assets mBEE
Inventories and record masters GFEENME A& 21 99,404,147 92,878,521
Film rights % R i - 6,151,674
Trade and other receivables, B 5 kEMmMmER
prepayments and deposits I FERNRIAR
®e 22 182,676,606 110,611,056
Prepaid lease payments FENHERA 6 88,610 88,610
Amount due from a related company JEM — K EHE QR
TRIE 23 4,642,548 10,592,709
Tax recoverable AT Y [B] 77 18 423,309 379,198
Short-term bank deposits FRHIRITERX 24 185,946,032 293,790,819
Cash and cash equivalent RekBEeEE 24 139,380,053 85,569,068
612,561,305 600,061,655
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables and accruals 2 5 Rk H A FER R IE
N et FRIR 25 80,105,210 61,847,808
Tax liabilities MIEEE 3,578,859 4,712,870
Bank borrowings SRITIEE 26 8,623,958 7,092,802
92,308,027 73,653,480
Net current assets MEVEEFE 520,253,278 526,408,175
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 864,493,896 822,613,213
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RE B AR N R R
At 31 March 2011
R-E——F=H=+—H

2011 2010
—g-—-f% —F-2F
NOTES HK$ HK$
st BTt BT
Non-current liability FmEad
Deferred taxation EIER IR 27 13,618,314 13,908,423
Net assets BEFE 850,875,582 808,704,790
Capital and reserves BEARN
Share capital fi% 7 28 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves & 799,907,854 757,737,062
Total equity B 850,875,582 808,704,790
The financial statements on pages 46 to 123 were approved and BN FI6EEFI123BE 2 BEHRERE A
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2011 and ﬁ%@)ﬁ\iﬁ__i/‘_\ﬂ —t+thBH#E
are signed on its behalf by: NETE THATEERKRESE:
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie B 5 B SUEK Chai Hong B & E
Chairman T & Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREEHX
For the year ended 31 March 2011
BEr—F——F=fA=+—HIFEF

R —— e~ L

Deemed
contribution Capital
Share Share Put option froma redemption Translation Retained
capital premium reserve shareholder reserve reserve profits Total
REHE RE-% EARE
B B EE ffe BRRZER e EXRE REER @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT B B BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2009 RZZZAFMA-A 50,967,728 210,949,953 - - 62,400 38,156,576 454,354,051 754,490,708
Other comprehensive income  AFEMZEYHA
for the year - - - - - 2,155,913 - 2,155,913
Profit for the year RERF - - - - - - 60,213,005 60,213,005
Total comprehensive income  AF2ERALE
for the year - - - - - 2,155,913 60,213,005 62,368,918
Avrising from acquisition of Wk BARMEE
subsidiaries (Vote 29) (Hit29) - - (19,561,456) 19,561,456 - - - -
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - - (8,154,836) (8,154,836)
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-SF=A=1+-A 50,967,728 210,949,953 (19,561,456) 19,561,456 62,400 40,312,489 506,412,220 808,704,790
Other comprehensive income ~ AFEMZEHA
for the year - - - - - 6,498,780 - 6,498,780
Profit for the year RERT - - - - - - 46,884,911 46,884,911
Total comprehensive income  AF2ANABE
for the year - - - - - 6,498,780 46,884,911 53,383,691
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - - (1212899 (11212,899)
At 31 March 2011 RZB--F=ZB=1-H 50,967,728 210,949,953 (19,561,456) 19,561,456 62,400 46,811,269 542,084,232 850,875,582
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEBRTREB|WK

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BEr—F——F=fA=+—HIFEF

>~ L S

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
Note HK$ HK$
k3 BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 54,552,155 63,166,395
Adjustments for: EYEE T A%
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBREE 289,456 380,060
Reversal of allowance for bad debts B ORERE S (3,717,703) (55,147)
Share of loss of an associate FElE—XKEE AT
EB 1,029,848 791,791
Write-down of inventories Mo E 55,622 56,160
Depreciation of property, plant mE - HE &
and equipment HBITE 28,953,939 32,272,297
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESE 2,298,062 1,723,546
Release of prepaid lease payments T8 5 70 & 5RIR 5 88,610 88,610
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME HWER
and equipment B f 57,313 -
Gain on disposal of film rights and & & IR I A
related prepayment TEAT RIE 2 Wiz (3,647,173) -
Amortisation of film rights 52 b W v 55 4,179,297 -
Interest expense FEZ T 150,862 294,741
Interest income MEWA (6,381,458) (3,678,444)
Operating cash flows before RetEBEESE AT 2
movements in working capital KEBRERE 77,908,830 95,040,009
Increase in inventories and FERIE R LN
record masters (5,871,899) (20,002,722)
Increase in trade and other receivables, & 5 & H {th JE U FiIHE -
prepayments and deposits T FE RIE S (31,058,924) (6,883,697)
Decrease (increase) in amount JEU — R BFE QA
due from a related company SRIEE A ($E40) 5,950,161 (9,229,956)
Increase in trade and B REMBEMNTKIER
other payables and accruals FEET R IR L 0 12,366,045 11,313,419
Cash generated from operations KEXEBREE 2R ® 59,294,213 70,237,053
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBENEH (8,472,016) (1,094,470)
Overseas tax paid BARGINRIE (663,460) (935,624)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& %(KMERSFE 50,158,737 68,206,959
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries L BE B /2B 2 A 29 - (58,973,980)
Deposit paid for acquisition of land BT T & - (5,558,642)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BT - BB &
property, plant and equipment JEET® (3,148,434) -
Deposits paid for investments BEMEER & (9,024,152) -
Decrease (increase) in short term ERIRTTIE FOR A
bank deposits (3 hn) 107,844,787 (29,556,545)
Purchase of property, BAME BER&E
plant and equipment (59,051,999) (7,406,355)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  WE KEE
plant and equipment FriS 58 459,770 -
Proceeds from disposal of film rights HE R R IRE R AEETE
and related prepayment NRIBREHIE 8,800,000 -
Interest received BEUF B 6,381,458 3,678,444
New loan receivables granted B EWER (56,309,691) -
Repayment on loan receivables EEEWE 16,065,691 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERETRERK
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BRETEBHE (F73E)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE 12,017,430 (97,817,078)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of bank import loans BEETADER (37,097,103) (6,854,810)
New bank import loans raised HIBRTALDER 38,628,259 12,855,082
Dividends paid ERRE (11,212,899) (8,154,836)
Interest paid ERFE (150,862) (294,741)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METEBER S FE
ACTIVITIES (9,832,605) (2,449,305)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN BERREESEEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2)FE 52,343,562 (32,059,424)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNzRERELEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 85,569,068 116,521,075
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREFHTE
RATE CHANGES 1,467,423 1,107,417
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEASRESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 139,380,053 85,569,068
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HERREEHEEHRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DM
Bank balances and cash RITEFELR S 139,380,053 85,569,068
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

52

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in “Corporate Information” section set
out in the Annual Report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 37 and 18 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBS

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BT ——F=HA=+—HIFEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

HK — INT 5

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
Classification of rights issues

Eligible hedged items

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions

Business combinations

Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners

Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by
the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on
demand clause

2. FERAHITRE
PR EER

R —— S~ L

CHIPAS::

| (EEMH

HEA]) (&)

A=A

BANBRSE R
(8])

BAMBREEL
(8])

BRI EASHR
(D)

BRI EAE32R
(E7T)

BRI EAE39%
(8])

BANBRSE R
F25% (7])

BAMBRSEE
3% (EEFT)

BE (BRMBRS
2EBZEY)
—REBR17H

BA-REFRS

BANBREER
FSRER] ER
“ZRE\FER
MHHREENZ
Rz —#D

RZFFNERAHZ
BREMBHREER
2B

RANBUMBRR

HEZz A8
BERHMIAR

ERRRSHEEN
WD BERZ 5
25

FHa

AEBADRIFRE

MBHRER 2251 —f5
RABHERER
BEGRZAHE
RO E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

2.

54

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17
“Leases” has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the
Group was required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such a requirement.
The amendments require that the classification of leasehold
land should be based on the general principles set out in
HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 April 2010
based on information that existed at the inception of the
leases. No reclassification is considered necessary because
none of the leasehold land qualifies for finance lease
classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments to Standards or Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

BRMIIREET 2ER
MBREERN ([BEMHK
EER[]) (&)

A=A

AEBEWEZF A T2 H
B R &M Fa] MEIERT &
A ZAEFT R

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in B 155 R —E-ZEEAUE
2010 (E3]) Rz B!
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Transfers of financial BB KRS ER BFE-EEoREE
assets 3 E75 (B3])
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments # EEIRREER $ETE
Bl
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 4 EH BRI b= AR IR S
F10%%
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 4 ERHBREER BT
E15
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other B EREER REMEEESR Y
entities 4 125 BE
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement 4 EBMBRELES AFEE
F13%
HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred tax: Recovery of BB ELENYE BELHE: REEE
underlying assets 5 (#£3]) BES

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related party disclosures © EReEREMYE BEEHRE
2009) (RZZTNF
BIEET)
HKAS 27 (as revised in Separate financial statements 4 BRI ELETS BUNBRR
2011) (RZZ——F
BB
HKAS 28 (as revised in Investments in associates and joint BRQERFE8H RBELFREE
2011) ventures * (R=Z2——F DRI Z A
BIEET)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum 6 (ERMBRE SEELHTIER
(Amendments) funding requirement © 2EZ8e) as
—REE14R
(f&3])
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities 5% (BRUBHRE URATIAKESR
with equity instruments 2 REZE®) affE
- BEE19%

! Amendments that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, as

' RCE-EELA-AS-E——
F—A— B (M M) %2 %5

appropriate. 2 EAR AR SR

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2 R-ZT—ZF+ A B 2ERHA
2010. A oL

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 3 N-E——F+ B —H BB
2011. A S

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 4 N-ZE—=F—H—HAx2EHB
January 2013. pa- o

> Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 5 R-ZT——F—F—BHs2%ERHK
January 2012. Z TR AR

6 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 6 R-E——F—H—HKZEHB
January 2011. Z TR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

2.

56

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
or Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

Business combinations took place prior to 1 April
2010

The acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions
for recognition were recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESEHEHE (&)

(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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T
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; . WA Z &5ERen] ezt =
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated ° BAZZ 5 MR8 7 B Mz R Al

with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of albums are recognised when the albums are delivered
and the title has passed.

Artistes management fee income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Promotion income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Income from the licensing of the musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from the licensing of distribution rights over films is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such payments
has been established when the notice of delivery is served to
the customers.

Deposits received from purchases prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Record masters

Record masters represent the accumulated costs incurred
in the production of master tapes of relevant audio-visual
products at the end of the reporting period and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit and loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Film rights

Film rights include the unamortised cost of completed
theatrical films and rights of the films acquired or licensed
from outsiders for exhibition and other exploitation.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income based on the proportion of actual
income earned during the year to the total estimated income
from the distribution of film rights. The total estimated income
is reviewed on a regular basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of film rights are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In
addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April
2009 are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included
in profit or loss under the finance costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

ETESEEX (&)

HE (&
HELHRET

EHEBR I RETEH K
AN SR B & K AR H AT AT A SR 5
DHEEER R ZBARE D E R
B LEEBEAREE  FE
EWOEBLYBERABERKLE
HE  BRIFRBEMERD GBS
REHE FRBERTAEEHRE
DEREEHE - ABME  &IK
HEHE(BEEMN—RERRNT
SR EHEMGK  HHEE L
MoORBFHEOHERD 2 S
R EZ LB D /LI RET

7 e

i ERIRE Al SEd D B - RASR
JIREEHEZHE T 2 S
ERERAMBARNKES B [TEN
MEFE] YRBERRNRERE
B3 - M ESRRRERN T3 A8
FEby 2 A Sedt o B - RIIEE IR
E-RENEAREMRE YA
VL E R T K

HhEE
RmEEEEER IV BRR
R AR ERZEAEEININEE

(ONE)ETZ R PRRHAM 2
BREXRFESEEAEY (A%
ERKECTREERBCER)
FCER o NI EBIR - AN SIE 2
EXHBEZB ZBRAERER
BE - ASNE R IRE LA EZ
FEEHB TEEHNBRE -

REEKEA RMEEEIEBA M
EfZELZRREERHEZE
AR

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2S£ MZERER 2 7

Annual Report 2011 7



R —— S~

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and deposits,
amount due from a related company, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ETEFBER (F)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) LR TH(#&)

Impairment of financial assets EHEERE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at ANEF@ALREHRTEHEH

the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired BEAODRBERHRBE  WE

where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or BREEFBEERNSRMEERVIILE

more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the RBHE 77— FTREZFTEHEMS

financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial BEESRMEEZEARAKRBEER

assets have been affected. EXTE ZSeREERER

=

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment MERNEWZKIENS  RELE

could include: BB EE:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or o BT ASE F T HIRE R
counterparty; or QN E

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in o EBRE Y qne BA s HE R F|
interest and principal payments; or BRARESER: K

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter o ERANB A RElR AE S ETTES
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or FEE ok

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial o B HIE SR & - B L
asset because of financial difficulties. MR EE ERMIGHEK -

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade MBS EWNTBSEE TSR EE

receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired BRIME Wil (s AIEFERREE

individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on CEEEREGIAEBEEN G

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for B RIWEIEREG 2 REUREE R

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past AIEEAEE BN ER .

experience of collecting payments and observable changes AR EEWHKIEAE AR 22X

in national or local economic conditions that correlate with S 5 OB AR 2 BB B R o

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment ML AV E S/ EEM

loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective = REBEREREZEBLE

evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the MMEECHBERTRZANER

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the WiEZEEZ FAEBERARER

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at MEFEZEFARARBESRER

the original effective interest rate. EMEZEZEZETE-
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70  Annual Report 2011 F 4



R —— S~ L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

EE—

3.

F——F=A=F—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited

The settlement of put option which is made by receiving a
fixed amount of cash and delivering a fixed number of the
shares of Neway Entertainment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, is accounted for as an equity instrument. The option
is measured at fair value on initial recognition and debited to
put option reserve.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2011, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$117,459,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$4,232,000) (2010: carrying
amount of approximately HK$95,620,000, net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$7,644,000). During
the year ended 31 March 2011, reversal of allowance for bad
debts of HK$3,717,703 is recognised in the profit or loss as
such bad debts are recovered through the receipts from the
counterparties.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life allocating to cash generating units
("CGUs") of the music and entertainment business are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
music and entertainment business CGUs. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGUs and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are
approximately HK$36,025,000 (2010: HK$36,025,000) and
HK$5,318,000 (2010: HK$5,318,000) respectively. Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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74

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value, if any.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful lives
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates. During
the year, the Group determined that the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment should be remained constant
to that of prior years. Depreciation expense is approximately
HK$28,954,000 (2010: HK$32,272,000) for the year ended 31
March 2011.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HEATRERRZEER
R (&)
e

W -~ B MR AT R LA R
SREE(MA)R LEGRERA
EE et A M EMEt &
B AEBEBFmIEE 25
ERFH NEETXFERLEL
NERX SR A ERFHET
AFEEH MR LR - RIBAEE S
EMBELUEEZRRITERSH-

MZITERTSEHARE -FA -
AEBEEBEEME BELEKEZ
A A FHEE B EFERR -
REZE-_ZT—F=A=+—H
IFFE  WER S 4/528,954,000
5%?5 (ZZ—F 432,272,000/
7": o

ERTH

Categories of financial instruments SRIAZER
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-FF
HKS$ HK$
BT Vow
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including BERREWRFIE (B
cash and cash equivalents) RekB2EE) 504,855,428 488,830,791
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost HSHp A 88,729,168 68,940,610

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables and deposits, amount due from a related
company, short-term bank deposits, bank balances, trade and
other payables and accruals and bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &®IE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEREEEEREE
(Continued) (48)
Market risk 75 E B
(i) Currency risk () SMEEjE f
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign AEBEBETZHIWERQ -
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group HHEUINEEITEBER S
to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain trade A % 2N & E 78 & S INE
receivables, bank balances, short-term bank deposits, BB o AN REBE A T LA
trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group AR E7T BT H
are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), United States KBt (BIEEMEETRE
dollars (“USD"), Australian dollars (“AUD"), Japanese JIEAEE)RENZES
Yen (“JPY") and Euro (“EURO"), the currencies other FEUERIE  ER1T45 65 - RS HA
than the functional currency of the respective group WITER BESEMNTER
entities as disclosed in notes 22, 24, 25 and 26 IRITIEE - D RIRMEE22 -
respectively. Approximately 28% (2010: 30%) of the 24 25K 26H 55 - REEL
Group's sales are denominated in currencies other than 28% (ZE—ZFF:30% )
the functional currency of the group entity making JHHELETHECEETE
the sale, whilst almost 20% (2010: 18%) of costs are U EREBUININ B
denominated in currencies other than the functional BEBEA#200% (ZE—F
currency of the group entity’s functional currency. F18% ) ZHMAUNERTE
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency EREE I B S
hedging policy. However, the management monitors i o N R B B AT & B 5N
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging BE R E - A BEE
significant foreign currency exposure should the need BERANER G - R B E B
arise. 8 E B YR EASNE R
o
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency AEBUINEABZEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities EREBEERNHREEHZ
at the reporting date are approximately as follows: FREEBSIT
Assets Liabilities
EE &
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--§% -Z-TFf CZBE--§ C"ZT-ITF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
usb eV 83,448,000 210,191,000 8,624,000 7,093,000
RMB AR 8,444,000 5,505,000 9,797,000 12,294,000
AUD R - 103,954,000 - -
JPY H - - 342,000 964,000
EURO BT 819,000 - - -
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BE—FE——F=A=1+—HIFE
5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) SHMITE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BREREEEEREEK
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) mEEEE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) (1) 57/\5 B (42)

76

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to currency risks at the reporting

RE DM

MT&Wf DT TOIRIE R
T HHZIMNERBREE 5L

date. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity BRRESNTMES  ARAE
rate is decreased to 10% in the current year as the BIAINEAN B B EEN
exchange rates between the Group’s foreign currency BEEAEEZREE VER
monetary assets and liabilities and the functional BB ERBHR AR

currencies of the Group’s entities are expected to be
more stable.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 10% (2010: 15%) increase and decrease in HK$
against relevant foreign currencies (other than USD)
and all other variables were held constant. 10%
(2010: 15%) is the sensitivity rate used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 10% (2010: 15%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year where
HK$ strengthen 10% (2010: 15%) against foreign
currencies. For a 10% (2010: 15%) weakening of HK$
against foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the result for the year.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZERGR D 7
Annual Report 2011

T MBRELLERRARFE
[FZ210% °

FR RS T R B ST Mg
$%Iﬁﬁim/ész
gHBEMEREE-

TRHFWAEBR B TR
BEBIINE (FBREET) A
BEEREEIO% (ZE—F
F:15% ) 2 BEREE 1L
RE—HEAMAERHAEZT
B THETHERZAE
BESHRMAZHRE
tT'tHO% T
15% ) - BREDITRBIE
RITBINEFHESREIER
WA FRIZEEXRHIRI0%
—E—ZTF 15%)EH)
HMETUFAE TXIE
HRBESTHINERE
10% (ZE—ZFF:15%)
BT AE Em A Frig
h0 e BT A INEBZE10%
—E-ZTF:15%) HAR
FE s EERNABRREE
BiERzZEE-



s e —
\
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

5  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. €®IA(#)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEERBEE
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) miEEE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) ()  YMEE (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRES (8)

Impact of Impact of Impact of Impact of

EUR JPY AUD RMB

AR#Z

Brz®g HEZ® - a7 b2

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
201 —B--F
(Decrease) increase in REERF

profit for the year (H)&8m (81,800) 34,200 - 135,300
2010 —Z-%F
Increase (decrease) in AEZHT

profit for the year #2meRd) - 144,600 (15,593,100) 1,018,350

(i) Interest rate risk I EYN

Cash flow interest rate risk BHeRefXEk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan receivables (see note 22 for
details of the loan receivables).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to variable-rate bank deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings. The Group has
not used any derivative instruments in order to mitigate
its exposure associated with fluctuations relating
to interest cash flows. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

NEB 7 NFEFR @R
HRETEBRZERER
(R ERFBB2HM T
22) °

oh REBEZREREF
EKEBREESRFBEER
RITTERR - SRITAE R S ERTT
BE AEEWTERBITM
PTHE T EIRAR Frs = B F &
REMEREEBE 2R -
A BEERYIRFIE
[R\B - W #E BEH FE HA B
52 88 A ) R [ B e SR L A1
FrEE1T8) -
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) LRI HE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEREERBEE
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) mEEEE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIRE R (E)

78

Sensitivity analysis

The management consider that the Group’s exposure
to future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances
as a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances are
not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of asset outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease
is used which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonable possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,773,000 (2010: HK$2,867,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank deposits and
bank borrowings.
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5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company, short-
term bank deposits and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on
loan receivables and amount due from a related company
as the credit risk is attributable to two counterparties. The
directors of the Company consider these counterparties
with good credit worthiness based on their past repayment
history and subsequent settlement. Other than these, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk in receivables as
the exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

&M T A (&)
BHEREERERBE

(%)
FERE

AEBZEERRIBIRES
Ko E b 8 WK IR~ B — R B &
NEFIE - FEHIRIT R RTTAE
8o

RZB——F=A=+—H K&
BIBLET 4 T REEEITE T AEUR
SESEIXYBHBEIMEYE 2 &
BIEERR  SEFE MBI RE
PREERIE R mMEE KT
=8

AEEzREER R EYR —RE
FERRRERAEERRBRET W
BRIKTT S REERBRBES
FZBER - ARBEZRE RIE
BRI KT A EE R R B
BREFBR ZFTHNNEER
if o BRUL 2 IN NEE 2 EERR
DRREZRFNIRER  BHER
RESEEERARBEETZIE
S o

ABEEERR ~AEEZEE
BECZREE/NHEEEEREE
RE B EEREMBEERRF
VA BE R BRER BR 2 17 ) W 1@ %80 BR (F
He AN BB R RS HIRRA
18 7l e M 3R IE 2 AT U (B 88 - BEER
41 RJ U (O] 5% IR FE AR B SR (B

e
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has undiscounted cash flows
of approximately HK$8,770,000 (2010: HK$7,247,000) on
bank borrowings payable within one year. The carrying amount

of such bank borrowings is approximately HK$8,624,000
(2010: HK$7,093,000).

Except for bank borrowings as stated above, the directors
consider that liquidity risk is limited after considering the
future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable future as
the Group has mainly non-interest bearing short-term liabilities
which are to be repaid within three months from the end of
the reporting period.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION WaERkoEER
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for WHEAEEFARE HE R

goods sold and services provided by the Group, less returns
and allowances during the year.

Segment revenues and results

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance is organised into two operating segments as
follows:

(a) sales of printing products (“Printing”); and

(b) artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies (“Music and entertainment”).

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by operating segment.

He fH AR A% P A R P M 2 5RIR CRUR
BRI -

TEBEREE

MARBEERG (AEBLERE
EF)EL Mmoo ER & HR
W2 ABRESE D AEMELE D
LN

() HEEIRIES (TENR]) ;
54

() EBATE BERSHE
HHEREY (S8R
%)) .

A EEIREES R 2 WA R
EEAIT -

Revenue Segment profit
(g 2 EEF
For the year ended For the year ended
HETHHEMLFE BETHABLEE
31.3.2011 31.3.2010 31.3.2011 31.3.2010
“E-—-f -T2 CZB--§ _"T-ITF
=A=+-B =ZA=+—-H =ZA=+-B =A=+—H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Printing Nl 656,471,530 549,884,019 41,482,653 35,116,214
Music and entertainment T hL N R 21,774,656 19,131,692 1,598,977 877,320
Total st 678,246,186 569,015,711 43,081,630 35,993,534
Interest income BN ON 6,346,514 3,532,455
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEESH (5,550,105)  (4,492,894)
Net foreign exchange gain HINGE Uy 255 B8 11,703,964 28,925,091
Share of loss of an associate JE(E —REE & R A
BB (1,029,848) (791,791)
Profit before taxation B 51 BT A 54,552,155 63,166,395

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

EXFRE 2B D EREEK

BINBEF
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WakoaEEN(E)
(Continued)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 4RSS KA 7 @t R BA M s 3 Frat
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. $E@Z FTBERARR o BT
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment RSB %M mEA&HD
without allocation of share of loss of an associate, certain it fE {5 — %HSZL/_\TEE}'TE\ =T A
interest income, net foreign exchange gain and unallocated BUT A INEWRZ FRB N RS
corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the %iﬂj o B BRAEE LRI LT
Group’s management for the purpose of resource allocation I ARAEREIRERE 25T
and performance assessment. gﬂ Pl
Segment assets and liabilities PTEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities NEFIGRKEDBE D Z2EEN
by operating segment: BESNWOT:
Music and
Printing entertainment Consolidated

EN il BHRIRG wEe

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2011 R=ZF——F

=A=+-—H
Segment assets DEEE 487,690,699 71,648,763 559,339,462
Investment in an associate R—REERR 2HE 15,903,075
Other assets HMEE 381,559,386
Consolidated assets REEE 956,801,923
Segment liabilities DEBE 96,625,878 7,091,451 103,717,329
Other liabilities HEmBaE 2,209,012
Consolidated liabilities maa’E 105,926,341
As at 31 March 2010 R_ZE—FF
=A=+—H

Segment assets DEEE 421,201,588 78,772,295 499,973,883
Investment in an associate R—REERR 2HE 16,932,923
Other assets Hitv & E 379,359,887
Consolidated assets REBE 896,266,693
Segment liabilities NEEE 81,635,262 4,884,272 86,519,534
Other liabilities HibBE 1,042,369
Consolidated liabilities GLEaE 87,561,903
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIPEER (E)

(Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segments performances and
allocating resources between segments:

RERDSBRAMR D BB E
BIR

BRR—KBERRZKE
BB & HTEMEEK
B RBRTEFARR S
EREEFEIN IBEES

DERELEDE-

o all assets are allocated to operating segments °
other than investment in an associate, deposits for
investments, certain other receivables, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

B T E M 50BN AT
RSN FrEREENRE
REDR-

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other °
than certain other payables and accruals.

Other segment information HioEER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 B _—_FE——F=H=+—HI
FE
Music and Segment
Printing entertainment total  Unallocated  Consolidated
L) EEJE AEET RAE G
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the SENBEEYNBEER
measure of segment STAZRE:
results or segment assets:
Interest income MEBA (34,351) (593) (34944) (6346514  (6,381458)
Interest expenses Flefz 150,862 - 150,862 - 150,862
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E FIE 4 8 88,610 - 88,610 - 88,610
Depreciation of property, nE BEREEINE
plant and equipment 28,953,939 - 28,953,939 - 28,953,939
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH - 2,298,062 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
Additions to non-current assets FRBDEERE 67,444,862 31,468 67,476,330 9,024,152 76,500,482
(Reversal) allowance for bad and (RE)RERERTE
doubtful debts, net (3,717,703) 289,456 (3,428,247) - (3,428,247)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

WEK o BER (&)

Hib s HEH (&)
BE_—F-—FF=HF=1+—H

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2010

84

IFFE
Music and Segment
Printing entertainment total  Unallocated  Consolidated
Rl ERRERE pEcEHY KB Ga
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B BT B
Amounts included in the measure SENREEYSBEER
of segment results or segment FAZEE:
assets;
Interest income MEBA (145,985) (4) (145.898)  (3,532455)  (3,678,444)
Interest expenses flafx 294,741 - 294,741 - 294,741
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BT EF B H 88,610 - 88,610 - 88,610
Depreciation of property, NE BEREELNE
plant and equipment 32,272,297 - 32,272,297 - 32,272,297
Amortisation of intangible assets BNEESH - 1,723,546 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
Additions to non-current assets FRPEERE 12,964997 50535204 63,500,201 - 63,500,201
(Reversal) allowance for bad and (BE)REERERS
doubtful debts, net 87,725 237,188 324913 - 324,913
Revenue from major products and services REFEELEREZWEF

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

AT RARBREEETZEMNK

major products and services: R 7 Wazs oD Hr:
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Printing products EN B EE G 656,471,530 549,884,019
Sales of albums BITBR 5,255,010 3,191,270
Artistes management fee income EUNBEE- SN 2,248,350 2,169,979
Concerts and shows income EIEE R FRIERA 5,060,404 1,601,072
Promotion income EERA 5,630,514 9,219,000
Income from the licensing of the EEIGEEISERION
musical works 2,146,956 2,736,580
Other music and entertainment Hoth = 25 % IR 2 R 7
services 1,433,422 213,791
678,246,186 569,015,711
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WakosEER (&)
(Continued)
Geographical information i & & R
The Group's income from printing operation is mainly derived AREEKBEHRESL ZWAETE
from Hong Kong and the PRC. The music and entertainment TR EB NP - F2 N IREE L
business are mainly carried out in Hong Kong. FEREBLE-
The Group's revenue from external customers and information AREBRBINEEEZWEZRE
about non-current assets by geographical location of the IERHEEZERD IR
customers and assets respectively are detailed below: NEEZHEMEES 0T :

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENDEFz W kRBEE

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--Ff —ZT-EZF —E--F “E-TF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong B 417,759,973 340,010,395 77,526,229 75,009,993
The PRC FE 128,909,101 138,198,957 266,714,389 221,195,045
Europe BN 57,042,883 35,674,948 - -
United States E3 57,176,943 43,995,497 - -
Others Het 17,357,286 11,135,914 - -

678,246,186 569,015,711 344,240,618 296,205,038

Information about major customers FEREFEHR

Included in the revenue of the Group is HK$69,026,000 REBEZ2-_E—F=ZA=+—
attributable by a single customer from printing business BIEFE AEBRZD BHE—
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group for the ZIRELE TP BERZ
year ended 31 March 2011. 69,026,000/8 7T * {h A E B AU 7

HEE10% °

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of total REE-_ZE—ZEF=A=+—H
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010. HFEE HEE —RFERASEE

BINZRBBE10%
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hth=mREE
2011 2010
—2——F —ZF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange gains HNEE YR 25 5 5E 11,703,964 28,925,091
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WEREEZ
plant and equipment &8 (57,313)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 1% R & (289,456) (380,060)
Reversal of allowance for bad debts B EREE 3,717,703
Gain on disposal of film rights HE R RIE 2 e 3,647,173 -
18,722,071 28,545,031
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EKK
2011 2010
—E——F —ZF
HKS$ HK$
BT B TT
Interest on: ATIER Z2H 8 :
Bank borrowings wholly BR—FREBHEEREZ
repayable within one year RITIEE 150,862 294,741
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2010: 16) UNTAEAENMEAN TR (ZE
directors were as follows: —TF16R)ESZME
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
ez FHEE BEs
SUEK AUCHn  CHENG  CHAN
Ka Lun, SUEK Hung,  Chee Juen,  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai TSE CHENG LUllai LAU Kam
Emie  Chai Hong Edwin Patrick Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai Chi Wai Ping Cheong Total
GER BEE ARx 828 R ENg REH #x% LA 2EN 8% aE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

B # # A A A k7 B BT # # #
Notee) (Note &)
(i) (Hiite)

2011 Z8--fF
Fees we - - - - 126,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 - 376,000
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other benefits ~ ~E&RAMEF 2160000 1260000 400000 270,692 - - - - - - 339353 4430045
- Contributions to retiement  —RAEFI5HI&L T
henefits schemes 12,000 12,000 4,000 9,000 - - - - - - 12,000 49,000
Total emoluments HenE 2,172,000 1,272,000 404,000 279,692 126,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 351353 4,855,045
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. EEME (&)
Executive directors Non-executive directors Alternate directors
4783 F47EE i3 ¢
LAUGhn  CHENG  SUEK CHAN NG Wai LAU
NG SUEK SUEK Hung, CheeJuen,  ChaiKit, SUEK, Kwing Choi, WONG ~ AUYan,  NGWai TSE - CHENG LI Lai Yung, Kam
Wai Chi ~ Chai Hong KaLun Edwin Patrick (Christopher ~ CheHin ~ Warren  SunFat Alfred Kwan TinTai  ChiWai Ping Angela  Cheong Total
%57 HEE  EEE RN WEE  EER  ERH  REM  ENR Bf  RER  #k®  EFR BB RER oBE E2 ]
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
k4 #R k4 #R 4 &R v e v e v e v -4 v -4 v
(Note d) Moted) — (Noted) (ote b Mote )
(W) (Wda)  (Wita) (zte) (i)
010 o33
Fees e - - - - S0 N8B 600 S0000 12500 5000 50000 2167 29167 1305057
Other emoluments ifhle
-Slaesand other  ~EER
henefts EREA 26320 100760 1471500 110000 300005 - - B30 3960 5286417
- Contributons to — R
retiiement benefits  &EIfER
scheres 316 100 12000 1200 12,000 - - BR800 8%
Toalemolumens  B4#E U643 1019600 1483500 118000 305 %130 &R 600 000 12500 50000 0000 B06T 29067 LI BN 6700455
Notes: B
(a) Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher and Mr. SUEK Che Hin have (@) B EE + N EEEE A IR IES
retired as non-executive directors with effect from 31 August TEE B-_ETHLENB=1—
2009. HiBAER -
(b) Mr. AU Yan, Alfred has been resigned as an independent non- (b) BT A BHEARN RN RIB N FEHITE
executive director of the Company with effect from 31 August E H-ETAFENA=T—HE
20009. L
(o] The directors’ remuneration does not include the estimated () EEWME T IAEHE—HEHHEAEER
monetary value of a property owned by the Group and HWEXAARNAR —ZBRESRE
occupied by Ms. NG Wai Yung, Angela, an ex-director of the RLUTERZYEZ G EBE-
Company. The estimated monetary value of the residential Hz-2——F=A=+—8H1
accommodation provided to the director for the year ended 31 FE- MEERBEEERE G5
March 2011 was HK$840,000 (2010: HK$420,000). 5 ¥ {8 /5840,0008 T (ZE—F
F 1 420,000 7T ) °
(d) Ms. NG Wai Chi has retired as an executive director with effect (d) REZPLTRAWNTEST B -Z
from 31 August 2009. TAFNA=+—BEBER-
(e) Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick and Mr. Lau Chin Hung, Edwin (e) R B A R BIRIE A DRI

have been resigned and retired as executive directors of the
Company with effect from 25 November 2010 and 18 August
2010 respectively.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in any
of the two years ended 31 March 2011.

MRAERRBIITES 2Rl
ET-—EF+—-A-+HEAR-T—
ZENA+N\BREK-

BHE_T——F=A=+—HIL
MIEFE  SIENABESNEE

o] A

&

& ©
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10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2010: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the

10. EEM S
EREBRALESHEALTF WA
—E-TEME)ARNARE
£ HEME 2 HBEEHN EX-

remaining individuals are as follows: Ep AT ZBemT:
2011 2010
—F——% —E-FHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e MH Mg A 1,829,477 1,125,000

Contributions to retirement RIKEFF B

benefits schemes 72,002 9,000
1,901,479 1,134,000

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE7HMEEHERWOT :
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 3 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the two years ended 31 March 2011.

BHE-_ZT——F=A=+—HI
MEFE  AEBAERAQAE
EH R ARSI A LS EA M
& ERMAREERINER 2 8
Bl R R 2 i {E
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11. TAXATION 1. BiIE
2011 2010
—E——F T —EF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation charge comprises: TIE ST H B HE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEB
Charge for the year REZH 6,621,017 3,957,064
Under(over)provision in prior year BEFERBTR
(EBREREE) 361,666 (1,033,856)
6,982,683 2,923,208
Overseas taxation BN
Charge for the year REH 861,144 1,449,787
Underprovision in prior year BEFERETR 113,526 1,041
974,670 1,450,828
Deferred tax credit (note 27) RERIBER R (H7227)
Current year EF (290,109) (1,420,646)
7,667,244 2,953,390

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

FB RGBT RIEHAEE 2
SRR DU FRR R 16.5% 5 -

BE(PEARLMBECENSE
R ([ (EMBRE )R
(EFBREERIEN) PR
B AR ZIHER25% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

P E——F=H=

11.

920

1T—HIFFE

TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

11.
FRELR

BE (&)

HGazmbimaRe

B A5 A B39 BR 2 B IR A0E

2011 2010
—E——-fF —ZF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before taxation B 50 B A 54,552,155 63,166,395
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LTS %E16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) (ZE—ZF:16.5% )t
B2HE 9,001,106 10,422,455
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ AT FI S 2 T A5 &
for tax purposes 919,679 633,834
Tax effect of income not taxable for DARBIMA Z BTG &
tax purposes (3,883,855) (2,990,285)
Tax effect of the tax losses not RERTEEBEZ
recognised g2 785,230 470,912
Under(over)provision in respect of FEBREBETIRS
prior years (FRFERE) 475,192 (1,032,815)
Effect of different tax rates of REMRDEEREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other M T&TH
jurisdictions MEFR 22 766,387 205,924
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B BT REREE
previously not recognised BB BB (396,495) (4,756,635)
Taxation for the year REFEWIE 7,667,244 2,953,390
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. KEEmF
2011 2010
—E——F T —EF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year has been arrived T E AN 5 IR B kR
at after charging (crediting): (T A) T oI&IE -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 2,298,062 1,723,546
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD M & 1,400,600 1,330,100
Cost of inventories recognised AR ERZ
as an expense, including FERAR (BEHUR
write-down of inventories of 1F555,622/8 7T
HK$55,622 (2010: HK$56,160) —E-TF:
56,160 7T ) ) 527,885,321 430,124,600
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERSEITE
equipment 28,953,939 32,272,297
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE A HH & IR B 8
payments 88,610 88,610
Amortisation of film rights 52 W e 55 4,179,297 -
Rental payments in respect of premises BRI EHE N 2
under operating leases mEzHE 7,073,972 5,083,006
Staff costs including directors’ BREEFME 2B IKRAE
emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —¥e IEREMETR 134,800,668 117,149,372
— Contributions to retirement —REFE B R
benefits schemes 866,365 878,166
Total staff costs BETIRA 135,667,033 118,027,538
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. KR
2011 2010
—E——fF —Z-TF
HK$ HK$
T T

Dividends recognised as distribution FAERIED IR ZIRE
during the year:

Interim dividends paid AT AL B — & %0.03
— HKO0.03 cent per share B (—E—ZF:
(2010: 2010 interim dividend —E-ZTFHHRES
HK0.08 cent) B 1%0.08%1L) 3,058,063 8,154,836
2010 Final dividend paid BENZZE-ZTFRERE
— HKO0.08 cent per share — & [%0.087 1L 8,154,836 -
11,212,899 8,154,836
The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend EEESRNEE—_ZE——F=
of HKO0.10 cent per share for the year ended 31 March BA=1+—BIrFEZXRHKEE
2011 (2010: HKO0.08 cent), subject to the approval of the BZO. 107 (ZZE—ZFF:0.08/8
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. i) - tEEEIRR R EER R BSE
K -
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RNERNNTEE AFELEREN
to the owners of the Company for the year is based on the BRAE AT EEETE
following data:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Earnings for the purposes of basic FEERERET AT
earnings per share 46,884,911 60,213,005
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Number of shares BHEE
Number of shares in issue for the AEEREAREF
purpose of basic earnings per share EEITIRE 10,193,545,600 10,193,545,600
No separate diluted earnings per share information has \Etlﬁélimﬁfg Iﬁ\/ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂ\%
been presented as there were no potential ordinary shares /%*Z‘Ej%ﬁﬂﬁ IR ES| Bk E
outstanding for both years. B E Ko
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Y173 rY
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERR®E
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction land and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
At BONE KR 2ER
ERIE RETF £% BAERE BERRE RE gy
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
B BT BT BT BT B B
cost RAE
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNEMA-A 7,389,482 113,112,660 43,207,324 33,810,067 456,236,489 11,238,190 664,994,212
Exchange adjustments EHAE 90,055 559,086 14,236 323,113 488,164 32212 1,506,866
Additions HE 783,585 118,041 - 1,011,489 4,286,021 1,207,219 7,406,355
Disposal HE - - - (118,539) - (690,595) (809,134)
At 31 March 2010 W=Z-2F=f=1+-H 8,263,122 113,789,787 43,221,560 35,026,130 461,010,674 11,787,006 673,098,299
Exchange adjustments EHAE 371,742 1,799,068 51,775 1,424,370 1,853,757 57,359 5,558,071
Additions RE 18,085,669 19,336,899 13,599,209 4,032,339 8,098,667 1,175,113 64,327,896
Disposal HE - - - - (730,000) - (730,000)
At 31 March 2011 RZE-—%=A=1+-H 26,720,533 134,925,754 56,872,544 40,482,839 470,233,098 13019498 742,254,266
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 April 2009 RZZZAFRA-A - 32,219,081 35,957,088 32,844,637 342,050,361 9777499 452,848,666
Exchange adjustment EHAE - 142,575 10,742 246,301 336,363 16,544 752,525
Provided for the year FhiE - 3,324,462 456,037 1,446,186 26,549,629 495,983 32,272,297
Eliminated on disposal HENE - - - (118,539) - (690,595) (809,134)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-FF=RA=1+-H - 35,686,118 36,423,867 34418585 368,936,353 9,599,431 485,064,354
Exchange adjustment AR - 734,688 41,921 1,240,876 721,159 38,987 2,777,631
Provided for the year FREE - 3,365,505 504,299 976,903 23,522,29% 584,936 28,953,939
Eliminated on disposal LEME - - - - (212,917) - (212,917)
At 31 March 2011 RZE—F=A=1+-H - 39,786,311 36,970,087 36,636,364 392,966,891 1023354 516,583,007
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2011 RZE-—%=A=1+-H 26,720,533 95,139,443 19,902,457 3,846,475 77,266,207 2,796,144 225,671,259
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-FF=R=1+-H 8,263,122 78,103,669 6,797,693 607,545 92,074,321 2,187,595 188,033,945
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERRZ®E (&)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are LimE mERZREBEER ZITE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per TERBO T2 FINERTIZELR
annum: EEGE:
Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease AT LA HARR 2k
terms or 30-50 years MEF 30E50%F
(ABREEH
Leasehold improvements 20% HAOMEERE  20%
Furniture, fixtures and office ~ 10% — 25% R KB R 10% — 25%
equipment /NN
B
Machinery and equipment 10% - 25% e 28 N Bk A5 10% — 25%
Motor vehicles 25% HE 25%
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The carrying values of leasehold FHEO T REF
land and buildings shown above FEEERE:
comprise:

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong 7 /A&7 3 LA A BBFE 49

Kong under medium-term leases A 2B MEF 30,981,165 31,913,693
Buildings in other regions in the PRC iz 7 A B £ 4th 1 [ 3 LA
under medium-term leases RHIENEE 2EF 64,158,278 46,189,976
95,139,443 78,103,669
Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying BRME (B A& ££30,981,1658 T 2%
value of HK$30,981,165 (2010: HK$31,913,693) have been X HMELAREBE(ZDE—FF:
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted 31,913,693 L) B TRIT  1F
to the Group. RAEEERHK -—RRITREZ
HH o
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FENHEERIE
2011 2010
e —z-z5
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's prepaid lease REBEMEEREA
payments comprise: BiE:
Medium-term leasehold land AL AR BN A AR HAFR 49
in the PRC Az 3,074,295 3,162,905
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REmOTET:
Non-current asset FERBEE 2,985,685 3,074,295
Current asset MENEE 88,610 88,610
3,074,295 3,162,905
The leasehold land is charged to consolidated statement MO T IEEREERFIRE
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the RN BHFEEENERNRER-
remaining term of the leases.
17. DEPOSITS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS AND 17. T FRAEGTEREER

DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS

Deposits of approximately HK$40,994,000 (2010:
HK$39,352,000) were paid for land use rights situated in the
PRC to the local government. The completion of the purchases
are pending for receiving the land use right certificates, as
such, the amounts paid for the land use rights are recorded as
deposits at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group will acquire
60% and 20% equity interest in JERTHEEMEREES
RAE ("REFHE") and M| REFMWERR AT ("R
ZFEREME") at an aggregate consideration of RMB6,000,000
(approximate by HK$7,140,000) and RMB1,600,000
(approximate by HK$1,884,000) and have paid in full amount
of consideration at the end of the reporting period. /5 5&
HZE and HEFEME are principally engaged in the property
investment in the PRC. The transaction has not yet completed
at the date of this report.

&

#340,994,0008 7T (—F—Z4F :
39,352,000/ 70 ) 7] & E B A
Bl Tt AN THEBLS
BRAT - 75 B8 U B 78 13 Wk BR - 1 55 R
REFEBFTETER B RIS H
KLt FERAES N ZHIEBEEA
RAAEFT & -

REE-ZE——F=A=1+—H
EFE - AEBRBKEBEERTH
BEEHMEREZEARAR([FIE
EBHE|)RTUINEEREHMES
RARI([HERME]) Z260%
K20% B A#EmE BREAA
K #6,000,0007T (497,140,000
o) M AR ®1,600,0007T (4
1,884,000 ) - REN H & 5
REBHEZF-REEHERE
EEMEFENTPREAEUWER
%;@ﬁﬁ%a%’%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*
=5 o
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—XEBEQNTZRE
2011 2010
e T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an associate R—REEE N T 2 KE KA
Unlisted JEEM 18,629,400 18,629,400

Share of post-acquisition losses and R EBEREMEE
other comprehensive expenses, net M ke ks

of dividends received (2,726,325) (1,696,477)
15,903,075 16,932,923
As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group had interest in the N_E——FN—_E-—EF=HA
following associate: =+—H AEERUTHESAT
hER R
Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
capital/
Form of Principal registered Proportion of
business Place of place of Class of capital held voting
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held by the Group power held Principal activity
AEEE
BRITRE/
M TEEX Fits HEfRE i
BERER SBRBRS  #H b R385 EELA REELH FTEEH
EMRNBEEBE % Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary 30% 30%  Investment holding
BRAR
("EANHE")
EWIES 2 RS v E HE EEK 30% 30% WEER
BRAR
(TEMAHE])

Neway Group Holdings Limited f £ & MZRER D 7
96 Annual Report 2011 £



__

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2011
P oE——F=A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. R—ZREEQNTZ2RE
(%&)
The financial year end date for Z M L% is 31 December. EMNEE s REEELR A
For the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, +-A=1+—H- - AXB#ERe:
the consolidated financial statements of &AL 4 FE for AR RRESREREEMNEE
the year ended 31 March 2011 have been prepared by the BE_—_E——F=A=+—H1IF
directors of the Company. The sub-group headed by #7148 FEZEBPBERE  LAEMILE
Z is principally engaged in property investment in the PRC. EEEZZFERTFEARNANKRE
YIEIRE o
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's EERNEFR SN NF 2B ER
associate is set out below: BEEHIIWT -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Total assets BEBE 60,267,950 59,201,334
Total liabilities BfERsE (7,257,700) (2,758,257)
Net assets BEFE 53,010,250 56,443,077
Group’s share of net assets of EEEG — KRB E
an associate NElZBEFE 15,903,075 16,932,923
Revenue & - -
Loss for the year REEERE (3,432,826) (2,639,303)
Group's share of loss and other FRAREEEMN—R
comprehensive income of B NR 2 BER
an associate for the year HibZ2mEA (1,029,848) (791,791)
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19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
HKS$
BT
COST AND CARRYING VALUES R K RHEE
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFHWA—A -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries  E g I E A & E 4 (H1i£29)
(Note 29) 36,025,324
At 31 March 2010 and RZIEBE—ZEF=ZA=F
31 March 2011 —E——F=f=+ 36,025,324

98

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible
assets set out in note 20 have been allocated to the CGUs of
music and entertainment business. The recoverable amount
of the CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
5-years period and discount rate of 22.5%. The cash flows
beyond the 5-years period are extrapolated having a steady
2% growth rate. The growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. A key assumption for the value in
use calculation is budgeted growth rate, which is determined
based on past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. No impairment on goodwill and
intangible assets was noted. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of the assumption would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGUs
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the above
CGUs.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEEE
Artiste
contracts Trademark Total
BAEH g et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
COoST SN
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZAFMA—AR - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B8 Bf /28 A 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
At 31 March 2010 and R—ZE—ZTF=H
31 March 2011 =t+—8K
—E——4F
=A=+—8 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZAFMA—AR - - -
Charge for the year REEZ T 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
At 31 March 2010 RZE—FF
=A=+—8 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
Charge for the year REF XM 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F
=A=+—8 4,021,608 - 4,021,608
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
=BA=+—8 5,170,640 5,317,632 10,488,272
At 31 March 2010 RZE—TF
=A=+—8 7,468,702 5,317,632 12,786,334
Artiste contracts, which have definite useful lives, are BAESNEEREFEHER LE
amortised over the contract term (4 years) on a straight-line BEREHFE (4F ) B -
basis.
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20.

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. B EE (&)
The trademark is considered by the management of the Group ARTEE R En mEEE IR S
as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to MAFR WAREEEIRER LN
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. Various studies ZEEERERAFEE - ANEBREIR
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and [BEETZIENT BiEERBE
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have XM R NIRIEBH AR
been performed by management of the Group, which supports mEER#e  EEEYER
that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over ERIEEEEZEE RS RF R A
which the trademarked products or services are expected to EBEELFH SR A EI A TE
generate net cash flows for the Group. The trademark will RER -2 re#y a2 H
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. R FEEREETAEBRE A
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever R BiEeSENRAETRETR
there is an indication that it may be impaired. o] e IR R E R ETTRE A -
Particulars of the impairment testing of artiste contracts and BASAREEZBENGSZFE
trademark are disclosed in note 19. AU FE19I & »
INVENTORIES AND RECORD MASTERS 21. FERERET
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Inventories: FE:
Raw materials R4 #} 48,874,483 51,997,271
Work in progress TE8 M 26,445,032 22,708,297
Finished goods BURK 19,059,795 18,172,953
94,379,310 92,878,521
Record masters 1R &7 5,024,837 -
99,404,147 92,878,521
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22.
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

EZREMEWFEE - B
RENREE

AEBHNRBEKEEZEZEHR
— % B60ZE90H o L B AN &= [F
ERTBEBREREMBERIRT
CEEAZABKRZIEEHR - K

The Group's credit terms on sales of printing business generally
range from 60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a
few customers with whom the Group has a good business
relationship and which are in sound financial condition.
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days to its EEE ASIE  RUENIRITZ G
customers of artistes management, production and distribution F¥EBEPR Z(ZEHR T 15 A45
of music albums. The credit terms of the distribution of He BT 758 /RIER A&
movie are determined by project basis. An ageing analysis HAEBT - B EINFHIE (BEHKk
of the trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts FERBME) 2R DT Jh iR &
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the KZBEEZEHEZ Yo

reporting period.

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: E il 3£ 75 -
0 — 30 days 0Z230K 100,566,903 76,407,446
31 - 60 days 31 RE60K 5,985,547 9,526,212
61 - 90 days 61X E90K 2,997,484 5,363,972
Over 90 days B iBI0K 1,905,817 277,176
111,455,751 91,574,806
Music and entertainment operation: SR NIRGEET
0 — 45 days 0ZF45X 4,331,212 1,105,117
46 — 90 days 46K E90K 1,640,607 121,831
91 — 180 days 91 RE180K 25,068 28,802
181 — 365 days 181K E365K 6,774 389,587
Over 365 days FRIA365K - 2,399,458
6,003,661 4,044,795
Total trade receivables B 5 RKKIREER 117,459,412 95,619,601
Deposits, prepayments and e EANRIER
other receivables H Al & W kIR 65,217,194 14,991,455
182,676,606 110,611,056
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22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Trade receivables of approximately HK$11,839,000 (2010:
HK$24,094,000) was denominated in USD, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly. Approximately 90% (2010: 90%) of trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
quality. These customers have no default of payment in the
past and have good credit rating attributable under the credit
review procedures used by the Group, including profitability,
liquidity, financial leverage and operational performance
quality of the counterparties.

The Group has a policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement
including the credit creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each client.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,578,000
(2010: HK$3,217,000), which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
of the trade receivable and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 104 days
(2010: 345 days).
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 22. ESFRHEHMEBEWRRE AN
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) FRERES (&)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but CHEAEEREBECEZEWR
not impaired B 2 IR
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: ENRI €75
91 to 180 days 91£&180H 1,905,817 277,176
Music and entertainment operation: FRRIRGLET -
46 — 90 days 46%90H 1,640,607 121,831
91 — 180 days 91£180H 25,068 28,802
181 — 365 days 181%365H 6,774 389,587
Over 365 days #Bia365H - 2,399,458
Total #Er 3,578,266 3,216,854
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEREET
2011 2010
2% —ETHF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Balance at beginning of the year FH 7,643,675 11,966,341
Impairment losses recognised on 8 UK IR BE R
receivables REEE 289,456 380,060
Reversal of bad debt RO (3,717,703) (55,147)
Amounts written off as uncollectible Teed el 2 i BR 58 - (4,650,135)
Exchange realignment [ 5, F8 5 16,300 2,556
Balance at end of the year F ARG 4,231,728 7,643,675
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22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$492,000 (2010: HK$5,152,000) which have
been in severe financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The trade receivables past due but
not provided for as at the end of the reporting period were
either subsequently settled or no historical default of payments
was noted by the respective customers. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. The directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts.

Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
are unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables from an
independent third party with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$40,244,000 (2010: nil) bearing fixed
interest rate at 5.25% (2010: nil) per annum and repayable in
twelve-months from 31 March 2011.

The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment,
including the current creditworthiness, collaterals and the past
collection history of the counterparty.
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23.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, the beneficial owner of the
Company, is one of the ultimate beneficial owners of the
related company. The Group’s credit terms to the related
company is 30 days.

An ageing analysis of amount due from a related company
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

23.

FEUW —REEE R TRE
KRB EREBAEERIELAS
ZABERNR IR BETEBALZ
—  AREBLTREBEARZIZEHR
A30H -

AT RREREHRERZAH
2 ZEE—REERRRALZ
BRiR DT

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

0 — 30 days 0£30H 636,907 1,097,133
31 - 60 days 31£60H 235,749 920,000
61 — 90 days 61£90H 392,001 1,450,000
91 - 180 days 912180H 1,308,525 3,460,000
Over 180 days HBiE180H 2,069,366 3,665,576
4,642,548 10,592,709

Included in the amount due from a related company with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$4,006,000
(2010: HK$9,496,000), which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
as the amount is subsequently settled. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 168 days (2010: 147 days).

JEW —REEE QB HIEF B
AR T B 48 %8 494,006,000/ 7T ( —
T —F 49,496,000/ 70) 2 fE
WA - %S RN FTER k4 B 5
B Hl - ARSI IR R E S
B RASEBEERKFIEEREZEE
E-AREEVWERZEHFBFET
A4 - 5% & B WGROE 2 FH BR IR
B168H (ZZE—ZF 1 147H) »
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23.

24.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 23. EW—REEQTRE
(Continued) (#)
Ageing of amount due from related companies £, 181 A 1B £ 5 {8 = FE UK BA
which are past due but not impaired ARFHIEZ Rk
2011 2010
e —E-3%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
31-60 days 31%60A 235,749 920,000
61-90 days 61Z90H 392,001 1,450,000
91-180 days 91Z180H 1,308,525 3,460,000
Over 180 days 131800 2,069,366 3,665,576
Total 45T 4,005,641 9,495,576
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 24, BHISRITER SRiITE

BALANCES AND CASH

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$71,609,000
(2010: HK$186,097,000), nil (2010: HK$103,954,000),
HK$8,444,000 (2010: HK$5,505,000) and HK$819,000
(2010: nil) were denominated in USD, AUD, RMB and EURO
respectively, the currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

Further, included in the short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$41,219,000 (2010: HK$42,342,000), which
are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.18% to 2.1% (2010: 0.1% to
2.5%) per annum.
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o 52 ERSR 1T E 3R SR 1T 4 B4
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. EZRHEMENRER
ACCRUALS i
The following is an ageing analysis of accounts payable NTREERERERRZEZERH
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the 25| 7 FER RIBEBER 9T -
reporting period.
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT T
0 — 30 days 0Z30K 38,497,896 34,329,771
31 - 60 days 31 RE60K 6,465,680 8,211,155
61 — 90 days 61X E90X 4,262,258 1,631,567
Over 90 days B BI0K 2,300,116 410,951
51,525,950 44,583,444
Accrued expenses and other payables — FE&H & B &k H b fE 5UE 28,579,260 17,264,364
80,105,210 61,847,808
The credit period ranged from 90 days to 120 days. The Group ZEHNT0EE120H - KAEE
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that B HIE SRR E IR - AR
all payables within the credit timeframe. P A FEA SRIE R B S 1+ -
Trade payables of approximately HK$9,797,000 (2010: BE D R49,797,0008 ¢ (=
HK$12,294,000) and HK$342,000 (2010: HK$964,000) were T —FF:12,294,0008 L) &
denominated in RMB and JPY respectively, the currencies other 342,0008 Lt (ZE—Z &
than the functional currency of the respective group entities. 964,000/ 7C) < B SN FKIED
FIAARE R BEREAN  MEH
FENEEER 2 ERAER-
26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. IRITEE

The bank borrowings are secured bank import loans which are
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period
and carry at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus spread,
ranging from 1.7% to 2% (2010: 2% to 2.2%) per annum.

All the bank borrowings were denominated in USD, the
currency other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

BITEEAERFERITAODE
FoBARRERRET —FAE
B BREBRTRERENTF R
EZNF1.7%%E2% (ZE—TF:
2%%E2.2% ) NEET R -

FIERITEEDARTREM
ﬁﬁ%mléﬂl%%@ﬁﬁgzm}ﬂ

Neway Group Holdings Limited # 25 B HR A

Annual Report 2011 &3 107



s e —
\
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EEHIR
The following are the major deferred tax liability (asset) NTAERERKBEFERRZ
recognised and movements thereon during the current and FTERERBEAGE (BE) NEE
prior years: & :

Accelerated

tax Tax Intangible
depreciation losses assets Total
MEB BT E BEER ENEE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFNA—H 13,266,455 (434,806) - 12,831,649
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (BN NKREAFERR
for the year (1,270,823) 134,562 (284,385) (1,420,646)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR - - 2,497,420 2,497,420
At 31 March 2010 R_E-ZFF
=A=+—H 11,995,632 (300,244) 2,213,035 13,908,423
Charge (credit) to profit or loss &k (BA) BRFEER
for the year 115,734 76,627 (482,470) (290,109)
At 31 March 2011 R-B——F
=Z=A=t+-H 12,111,366 (223,617) 1,730,565 13,618,314
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated R E R NEFTHIEKE K
unused tax losses of approximately HK$25,955,000 (2010: KR ZIEet R B RIS ERY
HK$24,064,000) available to offset against future profits. /425,955,000 70 ( —E—ZT4F:
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 24,064,000 L) - AREEE
approximately HK$1,355,000 (2010: HK$1,820,000) of the A H#1,355,0008 L (ZE—F
tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in F 11,820,000/ 1) 2 Fi ¥ B 18
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$24,600,000 (2010: MERIEER TG E = - FR & LATEA
HK$22,244,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit RAHRFRE - R0 Bt E AT
streams. Such losses may be carried forward indefinitely. E51824,600,0008 T (—ZE—F

T 122,244,000 7T ) HERIE LT
BEE ZEBEERHEHE-

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZERGR D 7
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA&
Par value of
each ordinary Number of
share shares Share capital
BREBREE R EE ¥
HK$ HK$'000
BT THT
Ordinary shares Limk
Authorised: EIE
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 RZZZNFOA-B-
and 31 March 2011 “E-TF=A=+—Hk
—E-——%=A=+—H 0.005  100,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 RZZETHAFMNA—R-
and 31 March 2011 “E-TFE-A=+-HR
—Z——f=ZfA=+—H 0.005 10,193,545,600 50,967,728

29.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Neway Entertainment
Group”) for cash consideration of HK$65,000,000 from
Neway Enterprise Holdings Limited (“Neway Enterprise”).
The acquisition had been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting.

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, the beneficial owner of
Neway Enterprise, has grant a put option (“Put Option”) to
the Group, exercisable at any time from the completion of
this acquisition (“Completion”) and ending on 1 July 2011,
the second anniversary date of the Completion, to require
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher to buy back the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Group at a consideration of
HK$65,000,000 and any investment cost contributed by the
Group after the Completion. The directors considered the
consideration paid of HK$65,000,000 represents the fair value
of business acquired, accordingly, the fair value of the Put
Option of approximately HK$19,561,000 at initial recognition
is considered as a deemed contribution and hence credited to
the equity.

29.

W B B BB X F]

RZEZNFANAATRB KL
E B Neway Enterprise Holdings
Limited ([Neway Enterprise | ) U
fENeway Entertainment Limited
N EMN B AR (S8 Neway
Entertainment®E & | ) 2 3 J& #& -

& {8 /65,000,000 7T ° %18
WEEHABEEEAR.

B 7 1418 1 B Neway Enterprise
ExAAN ERAKERTRME
HAfE ([RR0HHARE]D) - AT R IE IR
BT ([7ER]) 2B ETH Z M
F_RFEH(AIZZ——F
A—8) BEEAEREITE EK
B¥ B 418 £ LA X (865,000,000/8
JCE&BINeway Entertainmentfs
IR E RN KB AR B L
RWERR - ELZRBAZANZRE
65,000,000 7T A AT BB 75 2
NEE Bt ROAHEA T EL
19,561,000/ JT 1A ¥ 2 7 72 By 1%
RAE—BEEERMEAmMEE A

=

Mo
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. WEBHIB TR (&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill LMK BEFENELE
arising, are as follows: ZHEEWNTR:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
before Fair value
combinations adjustments Fair value
REBtA
WRELE 2
BREE AEERE AFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT
Net assets acquired: Fri i & EE )5 1A -
Bank balances and cash RTEBR RS 6,509,892 - 6,509,892
Film rights 7 R 5,525,678 625,996 6,151,674
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth & W IR 8,109,480 - 8,109,480
Other creditors and accruals HMEMERRR
FEFTFRIE (2,578,559) - (2,578,559)
Tax payable FET IR (746,399) - (746,399)
Intangible assets in relation to HEAS K REE
artiste contracts and trademark BRAZEREE - 14,509,880 14,509,880
Deferred tax PRAERIE - (2,497,420) (2,497,420)
16,820,092 12,638,456 29,458,548
Goodwill [EE 36,025,324
65,483,872

Total consideration satisfied by: BREATIN T

Cash e

Directly attributable costs HEEEKAR
Net cash outflow arising WHEEZ

on acquisition: e FE

Cash consideration paid ENBRERE

Bank balances and cash IRITAER LB ®

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZERGR D 7
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29.

F— AL

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Neway Entertainment
Group because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In additional, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of revenue growth and future market development.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. The Group also acquired the
customer relationships of Neway Entertainment Group as
part of the acquisition. These assets could not be separately
recognised from goodwill because they are not capable
of being separated from the Group and sold, transferred,
licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together
with any related contracts.

The fair value of Put Option of approximately HK$19,561,000
at initial recognition is contributed by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher. The fair value of Put Option determined at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of Put Option.

HK$65,000,000
HK$65,000,000

Share price (Note )
Exercise price

Expected life of options 2 years
Expected volatility (note ii) 54.5%
Expected dividend yield 1.49%
Risk free rate 0.704%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumption, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price is HK$65,000,000, which is equal to the
purchase consideration of the acquisition.

(ii) The expected volatility of Put Option based on the historical
daily share price movements of a set of comparable companies
over a historical period of 2 years.

Neway Entertainment Group contributed approximately
HK$809,000 to the Group's profit for the period between the
date of acquisition and at the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2009, total
group revenue and profit for the year would have been
HK$579,139,000 and HK$57,299,000 respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
the operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2009,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

29.
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. HEAIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIMEER NEERWEZT
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- TREKCEHEREN 2 R RHIEK
cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall THE I AVER LA T BRI 2 BA 4%
due as follows: 1<t
2011 2010
— —T-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F R 11,499,795 4,527,643
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFERFNR
(BEEEMWSF) 32,387,286 7,446,802
Over five years HBiBAF 56,509,735 51,877,565
100,396,816 63,852,010
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ST E IR A EB A A
Group for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. Bl IHMOmENEIESENZ
Leases for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated He - IMYWENREIBESZMHE
for terms of 1 to 50 years. Rentals are fixed for 1 to 50 years. EHETEAIZ0F NS -HEN
1ZE50F NEE T # -
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BEXREIE
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Capital expenditure contracted for but FAA RN &BEFTHERE

not provided in the consolidated FREMBmRPIER
financial statements in respect of: EEZERAL
- acquisition of property, —WEME BB R EE
plant and equipment 25,268,931 2,533,591
— land use rights in the PRC — R Bz b {E A 11,421,514 13,063,714

36,690,445 15,597,305
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32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme ("ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from
the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

32.

B8 R ET

AEBAEEEZAETAERE
B 17T E B R KB A 5T 2
([ORSO&TEI]) - ORSOFTEI 2 &
EREIAEHZzESEE B
SEEEDFEE - ORSOF &l
2 KT ORSORT &l 2 8 BIIFTET
B2 tE RETE o fidifE B 7 A] 28X
S AR £ ORSOEH & - REE
FEVEH 2 L3R AT FYQ Uk 2 3k i
e

BE-_E2TEF+_A—HB# XK
SENEAREREEELSMAS
MAREEEE ([AEE5FTE]) -
RETFEERERGFERES
FrEMEAIR B HE R B EIE
EREM -aEeHE v EERS
NVEAEH 2 ESRFR  BEAE
B EENRAERIRE - BIERESET
g BEEXRHEESAELBALGTA
L EREBESFTEEL ke
AEEREBESFTEI T 2E—F
EAERREER 2B - BREFE
IO BB R E SR8 208
Wit SR AT LR D R EVEH 2

K

KR A 2 E KSR AR Z ORSO
At EI MR A& N 2 RIKE T
AHEIEER - THE AR BIRZ FRT 8
MAFTHZ LR ERESIELZ
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32.

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in the
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal
government of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to
fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions to
the scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Apart from the amount due from a related company as
disclosed in note 23 and the transaction as detailed in
note 29, during the year, the Group has entered into
significant transactions between related parties and
subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

32.

33.

RINERETE (&)

ERAGEHETEZAERESR
ZERWRBHE - AEE D208
AR TT BT B IR 2 R AKAE T
A8l - NREEAR BRI E B F K
RezX—BDHREFEHEF K
REMERES - BREAZARE
1 B U AR B H R AR 2 R Hr
& MR FHIE B 2 RIREF] -
AEERZE 2 E—BERR
BIEHETEBIRE R 2 ] - [A13%
AEMEH 2R ERIEZFEZ
MAD RERFELR S 2 mRaER
kil

R-B——FR-F-FF=f
=+—8 HEAEEN2ERE
ST MRS S BITRIK - 37
FRUAIR 74 88 [ 2 R SRS 1 30
2 BARRM R -

BEAELXRS

(a) FREFFE23PAMMEBE L —K
8 3 X m) A DA K B 5529
Az R BN FRAEHE
BETREALEARAN

B RRET T IZHEEAR

5
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-FF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Promotion service fee income  #ERBEEIA (H1:Ei)

(Note i) 5,109,334 8,010,000
Licensed fee income (Note /) FrEr B WA (H7ati) 1,080,000 2,465,576
Sales of goods (Note i) HEER(MiEi) 11,800 303,460
Office rental expenses (Note ) P AREMEFEL (A1) 360,000 270,000
Premises rental expenses WEM SR (M)

(Note ii) 840,000 840,000
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEALTXRE (&)

(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)

Notes: Htat -

(i) The transactions were carried out with Neway Karaoke (i) RER G TS
Box Limited and its subsidiaries, companies beneficially T E & A B 2 R FNeway
owned by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher. Karaoke Box Limited & &

P8 A RIETT -

(i) The transaction was carried out with another related (ii) ZERSTHES—REE
company, a company beneficially owned by the NEl (KA EEE L
spouse and sons of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher. HEBERTFESERZ

NAE)ETT
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) TEEEABE ZHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of UNTAEEREMTEEE
key management during the year was as follows: ABRAFEZHE

2011 2010

—E——-F —E-FF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits 2 B E A 8,433,970 10,442,469

Post-employment benefits BB 2 42 192,667 184,726

8,626,637 10,627,195

The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERTETHRABZMES T H

determined by the remuneration committee having FMEZERENATIRRR

regard to the performance of individuals and market MGBEET -

trends.
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34.

35.

36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 26, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2011, the purchase consideration of property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$5,275,897 (2010: nil)
was remained unsettled and included in other payables and
accruals.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 June 2011, the Group has entered a supplemental
agreement with Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher agreeing that
the end of the exercisable period of the Put Option is extended
from 1 July 2011, the second anniversary of the Completion,
to 1 July 2012, the third anniversary of the Completion.
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EXERERE

AEEEREEARAURRAEE
ETEERERELE AKES
MR RMER L ED T B8
REHE AR

AEE 2 BARRERER (B
26T BT 2 RITEE - IR
LB EE) RARBER AE
D (BREBRTRAREE)
A -

AEEZERERBERNEAR
B EEZERBREEANARE
REH R 2 B o AR EE B
1T 8 B A Mo # IR {E A B
BRRBEERFHEHEBEEAR
e

AEBEZBRREE FFEM
G

TEHBRERS

RZE——F=R=+—8"
mME-HMERSEZBEERE
5,275,897 (—ZE—ZTF 1 &)
IAREES st AH MR FIE R E
ETRIE -
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. MMEBAT 2B
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March RAAFIFB AR N —_E——F =
2011 and 31 March 2010. A=+—BR-ZZE—ZF=AH
=+—RZHE-
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
AARFIHERT
BregmT/ BE/EMER
) PR S S B e EREIL TEEHR
2011 2010
—2--f _T-I%F
Chung Tai Printing Holdings BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
Chung Tai Printing Holdings EBEAHS 10,0007 1T 100 100 BEER
Limited Lk
Chung Tai Printing Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HK$500,000
deferred non-voting
hARHRIBRAR B 1,000 7 100 100 HREER
gl
500,000/ 75
BRERELR
The Greatime Printing The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. registered capital printing
HERER (RN BRAF il 12,000,000 70 100 100 BRERAXEDR
AMER
hREIR (B&) AR A The PRC HK$150,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
RRER (FR)BERAR hE 150,000,000 7T 100 100 EEES
BXRER O5R) BB AT The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
HAER (F&)ERAR i 10,000,000 70 100 100 EEXH
AfER

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2S£ MZERER 2 7
Annual Report 2011 &3 117



R —— S~

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBS
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BT ——F=HA=+—HIFEF
37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. MIBAR 2% (&)
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADBRBERT
BrewsT/ B,/ EREx
WEQE LM T, AR ERBEIL TEERH
2011 2010
“E--f% —Z-TF
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100  Label and offset
Company Limited HK$10,000 printing
deferred non-voting
RARER (R E)BERAT BE 1,000 7T 100 100 BERAXDF
3
10,0007 7T
BERZRELTHR
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company Limited HK$1,000,000
deferred non-voting
AR ENRIAR DA Bk 1,000 7T 100 100 EEXH
1,000,000 7T
ERFERER
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of
advertising
materials
SMERAR Bk 200,000 7T 100 100 EEESYH
BEk
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100  Property investment
HK$2
deferred non-voting
PAREEEAERAR Bk 10087 100 100 #MERE
BiEk
28T
EREERIER
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WBARZHFE (&)
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADBRBERT
BrewsT/ B,/ EREx
WEQE LM T, AR ERBEIL FEEK
2011 2010
“E--f% —Z-TF
Chung Tai Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Development Co. Limited
PARREERBERAR ) 1B 100 100 EEEHS
Rl
Chung Tai Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
HK$2
deferred non-voting
PRERERAF Bk 1007T 100 100 EEES
gl
2B
BERFBELR
Chung Tai Packaging Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
PREEERAH ) 10,000%7¢ 100 100 EEER
LR
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Brilliant Wise International Limited EERRES 1%7T 100 100 HREER
gl
Gain Capital International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Gain Capital International Limited RERTRES (EV 100 100 REZR
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment in TV
series production
REEXARAT Bk 1B 100 100 BREEFFRE
gl
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. MIBAR 2% (&)
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADBRBERT
BreRT/ B,/ EREx
WEQE LM T, AR ERBEIL TEERH
2011 2010
“E--f% —Z-TF
Neway Entertainment Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Neway Entertainment Limited RERTRE (E 100 100 REZR
TR
Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EREARAF BB 187 100 100 EEXH
Star Entertainment (Universe) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited management and
music licensing
services and sales
of music albums
ERE (RF)BRRA 0 BT 100 100 RHEBAEER
Rl B EMIER R
HETERE
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
licensing services
and investment
holding
HRREIBARAR BB 10,000 7T 100 100 HREFLERERS R
gl REER
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
KEFBERAT B 10,000/ 7 100 100 EEXH
ERR
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WBARZHFE (&)
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRB CRIT
BrewsT/ B,/ EREx
WEQE LM T, AR ERBEIL FEEK
2011 2010
“E--f% —Z-TF
Neway Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Production and
distribution of
movies
HERYEREERAT] Bk 10,0007 7 100 100 EFREREST
Neway Star Music Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Sales of music
albums
HEREREREERDT] BE 10,000/ 7 100 100 HESHER
LR
Neway Star Artiste Hong Kong HK10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Management Limited management
services
HEREREEARAT Bk 10,000/ 7 100 100 REZABERE
TmR
SmartMax International Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
SmartMax International Limited EEERES 1%7T 100 100 REER
LB
Citicorp Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RRERARDA Bk 187 100 100 REZER
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100* - Inactive
RBEER (EM)BRAR Bt BT 100* - EBEXH
LRk
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. WBARZHE (&)
Effective
percentage of
Paid up issued share
Place of issued/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ADBRBERT
BreRT/ B,/ EREx
) PNCECE T i B AR EREIL TEERH
2011 2010
“E--f% —Z-TF

Dream Class Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100* - Inactive
Dream Class Limited RBRLES 50,000% 7T 100* - EEXH

TR
Power Rank International Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100* - Investment holding
Power Rank International Limited EEELHS 50,000% T 100* - REER

Rl
Hero Chance Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100* - Investment holding
Hero Chance Limited AERAES 50,000 70 100* - REZR
Victor Glory Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100* - Investment holding
Victor Glory Limited RERTRE 50,000% 7T 100* - REER

EmR
Golden Richland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100* - Inactive
EEERAT Bk 10,000/ 7 100* - EEXH
Nation Profit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100* - Investment holding
MRBBR AT Bk 10,000/ 7 100* - REER

Rl
Star Rank Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100* - Investment holding
Star Rank Limited RERTRE 50,000% T 100* - REER

EmR
Max Synergy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100* - Inactive
ERERRA BB 10,0007 7T 100* - EBEXH

Rl

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZERGR D 7
122 Annual Report 2011 &%



R —— S~ L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2011
Br—F——F=A=+—HIFE

37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

* The subsidiaries are newly set up during the year ended 31
March 20711.

Note: The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., A K EIf (jEi)
BRATR and BAER (J&&E) AR AT are wholly foreign
owned enterprises in the PRC.

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the exception of Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited,
Brilliant Wise International Limited, Gain Capital International
Limited, SmartMax International Limited, Dream Class
Limited which are directly owned by the Company, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the Company.

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

37.

B A Bz 515 (&)

v BEWBARPRRE-F——iF
ZAE AU EEHA T

it RENR ORI BB AR H K
ENR OB 2E) B R A ) KK ENRI
(BE)ERRA T EZINEE
Az

FIEXRBORN BB RPEETT

Chung Tai Printing Holdings
Limited - Brilliant Wise International
Limited * Gain Capital International
Limited * SmartMax International
Limited }2 Dream Class Limited /1 7
NEEEER FIBEEMMEB AT
RANAREEESR -

ERERELER (JFR A KBRS
BIZHBEANEE L ERERRE
REBBERAEAEXHERR
RAZEAERAEHNE LR
2 HRNBERESETADIK-

B 8 X B 0 4R 4% 2k I E AR B
BEEAHREE ZEBES -
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B HME

RESULTS ¥EiE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1+-BLHEE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ETL+FE —ZTTNF —TTAF —TTF ZB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue I 25 678,029 728,563 691,495 569,016 678,246
Profit before taxation B 7 B & A 40,761 41,184 (16,016) 63,166 54,552
Taxation Hi1E (6,268) (2,164) (1,920) (2,953) (7,667)
Profit for the year NG 34,493 39,020 (17,936) 60,213 46,885
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
At 31 March
R=B=+—8H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—EBEE+F —ZZTENF ETNF —ET-ITF ZB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAET FET
Total assets BERE 658,326 1,015,703 817,001 896,267 956,802
Total liabilities BEBTE 86,988 236,577 62,511 87,562 105,926
Total equity BT 571,338 779,126 754,490 808,705 850,876
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Neway Group Holdings Limited
FESKEZEARAT

Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,

On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, N.T., H.K.

BB ERET ENZEGH 1SR ARDREERE

Tel B7E: (852) 2669 6111  Fax {EE.: (852) 2677 6556
Website #3lt: www.newaygroup.com.hk
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